BRAHMANI RIVER PELLETS LIMITED ((CEQEE

Registerad Office |

www.brplpellets.com

NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Brahmani River Pellets Ltd. will be held on 27" July, 2022, Wednesday AT 12:00 PM
(Indian Standard Time), in the Conference Hall of the Registered Office of the
Company at 4" Floor, IPICOL House, Janpath, Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751022
through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”") Facility to

transact following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 01: To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the
Company and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors for the financial

year 2021-22

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31
March, 2022, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the financial

year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No. 02: To appoint a Director in place of Mr. J.Nagarajan (DIN: 08066275) who
retires by rotation and is eligible for reappointment

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution

as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT under section 152(6) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, Mr. J. Nagarajan (DIN: 08066275),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment, be and is
hereby reappointed as Director on the Board of Directors of the Company who would be

liable to retire by rotation.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 03: To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost
Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 under section 148(3) of the Companies Act,
2013

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution

as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT under section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules issued by the Central Government there under, the
reappointment made by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 13" May, 2022 of
M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost Accountants in practice, Bhubaneswar, as Cost Auditors
of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 in respect of “Ore and Mineral Products” at
a remuneration of Rs.1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh & Twenty Five Thousand) plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of reasonable travelling and out of pocket expenses

incurred in connection with the cost audit work be and is hereby ratified.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
Brahmani River Pellets Limited

Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Suvendu K. Kar)
Date: 4" July, 2022 Company Secretary

To,

1) All the Members of the Company

2) All the Directors of the Company

3) Statutory Auditors - M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
4) Secretarial Auditors - M/s. S. Srinivasan & Co.

5) Cost Auditors - M/s. Ashutosh & Associates



IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) setting out material facts concerning the business under Item No. 3 of the
accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on 13" May, 2022 considered that the special business under Item No. 3,

being considered unavoidable, be transacted at the 16" AGM of the Company.

2. General instructions for accessing and participating in the 16™ AGM through
VC/OAVM Facility

a. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norm to be
followed and the continuing restriction on movement of persons at several places in the
country and pursuant to General Circular Nos.14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021,
19/2021, 21/2021 and 02/2022 dated 8" April 2020, 13™ April 2020, 5" May 2020, 13"
January, 2021, 8" December, 2021, 14" December, 2021 and 5" May, 2022 respectively,
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars™) and in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder the 16" AGM of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical
presence of members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 16" AGM shall be

the Registered Office of the Company.

b. In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility
of appointment of proxies by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available
for the 16" AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act,
representatives of the Members may be appointed for the purpose of participation in the
16" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and Voting during the 16" AGM.

c. In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the 16" AGM will be available on the

website of the Company at www.brplind.com.

d. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not annexed

in this Notice.

e. Members may join the 16" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility, by joining through the
Zoom link or any other VC / OAVM link as being sent, which shall be kept open for the
Members from 11:45 AM. IST i.e. 15 minutes before the time scheduled to start the



16" AGM and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM Facility 15
minutes after the scheduled time to start the 16" AGM. In case of any difficulty in
accessing the technology before or during the Meeting, Members can reach us on 0674-
2543390.

f. Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility by the Company allows patrticipation of
all the Members including the large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), promoters, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, auditors, etc. who can

attend the 16" AGM without any restriction.

g. Attendance of the Members participating in the 16" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility

shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

h. Further, Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting. Please note that Members connecting from maobile
devices or tablets or through laptops etc. connecting via mobile hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid

glitches.

i. Members can submit questions in advance with regard to the financial statements or any
other matter to be placed at the 16" AGM, from their registered email address, mentioning
their name, DP ID / Client ID number / folio number and mobile number, to reach the

Company’s email address suvendu.kar@brplind.com atleast 48 hours in advance before

the start of the meeting. Such questions by the Members shall be taken up during the

meeting and replied by the Company suitably.

j. During the 16™ AGM, the Chairman shall, after response to the questions raised by the
Members in advance, formally propose to the Members participating through VC/OAVM

Facility to vote on the resolutions as set out in the Notice of the 16" AGM.

k. During the Meeting held through VC / OAVM facility, where a poll on any item is
required, the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending e-mails
through their registered e-mail address with the Company to the designated e-mail id

suvendu.kar@brplind.com. The Chairman may decide to conduct a vote by show of hands

where the presence of Members in the Meeting is less than 50.



I. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 16" AGM and the
Annual Report including therein the Audited Financial Statements for financial year 2021-

22, are being sent only by email to the Members.

m. The Notice of the 16" AGM and the Annual Report including therein the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year 2021-22, will be available on the website of the

Company at www.brplpellets.com.

n. Electronic copy of all the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 16"
AGM and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection in the website of the

Company at www.brplpellets.com.

0. During the 16" AGM, Members may access the scanned copy of Register of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Act and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested

maintained under Section 189 of the Act by e-mailing to suvendu.kar@brplind.com.

p. Details as required in Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) of ICSI, in
respect of the Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the 16" AGM, forms
integral part of the Notice of the 16" AGM. Requisite declarations have been received

from the Directors for seeking appointment / re-appointment.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING DATED 27™ JULY,
2022 - EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

As required pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the following
Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to the items of business mentioned
in the accompanying Notice, being Special Business.

[tem No. 03: To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost Auditors for
the financial year 2022-23 under section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

In accordance with section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the appointment and remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors to audit the Cost
Accounts maintained by your Company for the financial year 2022-23 is required to be approved by the
Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the remuneration payable to

them be ratified subsequently by the Shareholders in the General Meeting.

In pursuance of the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, your
Board of Directors, has reappointed M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost Accountants in practice,
Bhubaneswar as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 at a remuneration of Rs.1,25,000/-
(Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of reasonable
traveling / out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the cost audit work and has recommended

the remuneration for ratification of the Shareholders in this Meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested financially or otherwise, in the proposed Resolution. The Board recommends the Ordinary

Resolution as set out at Item No. 03 of the Notice of 16" AGM for approval by the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Brahmani River Pellets Limited

Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Suvendu K. Kar)
Date: 4" July, 2022 Company Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
Under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Members,

Brahmani River Pellets Limited

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 16" Boards’ Report on the business

and operations of the Company together with the Audited Accounts and Auditors’ Report for

the financial year ended 31 March, 2022 containing the matters as required under section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (the

Rules).

1. Financial Results

(Rupees in Crores)

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
i. Revenue from operations 3029.99 2282.78
ii. Other Income 19.39 13.91
iii.Total Income 3049.38 2296.69
iv. Expenses

Cost of material consumed 2174.55 1489.67
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in

trade and work in progress (27.68) 8.25
Excise duty expenses - -
Employee benefit expenses 30.55 31.60
Finance costs 10.20 12.10
Depreciation and amortization expenses 72.99 68.09
Revaluation (Gain)/loss on PP & E - -
Other expenses 682.52 603.93
Total Expenses 2943.13 2213.64
v. Profit before tax(iii-iv) 106.25 83.05
vi. Tax expenses

Current tax 16.53 9.14
Less: MAT Credit entitlement - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (0.22) (2.78)
Defered tax(credit)/charge 12.70 13.01
Total Tax Expenses 29.01 19.37
vii. Profit after tax(v-vi) 77.24 63.68
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2. Financial Highlights

Your Company has clocked a turnover of Rs.3029.99 crore for the year ended March 31,
2022, an increase of 32.73%, as compared to Rs.2282.78 crore during previous year. The
Company reported net profit of Rs.77.25 crore for FY 2021-22 as compared to net profit of
Rs.63.68 Crore for FY 2020-21. Increase in revenue is primarily on account of increase in

price of pellet due to escalation in cost of raw material i.e. Iron ore fines.

3. Operations:

Your Company has achieved capacity utilization of Pellet Plant at 84% in the current year
as against 86% in previous year. Due to limited availability of the high grade IOF in the
market, the Company explored procurement of the medium grade and low grade IOF for
optimum blending to produce the required quality of the Pellets. During the year the
Company has executed Long Term Linkage agreement with Odisha Mining Corporation
increasing the I0F lifting from 1.33 MTPA to 2.4 MTPA. The agreement ensures consistent

supply of IOF reducing dependency on other Miners.

Wet Grinding Unit (WGU) with capacity of 120 TPH at Pellet Plant, Jajpur has been
commissioned in June, 2021. Wet grinding concentrate of 2 lakh tonne was produced
during the period from July, 2021 to March, 2022. The WGU process has stabilized and it
has produced 42,129 tons and 50,539 tons (Total- 92,668 tons) during February-March,
2022. Going forward we plan to produce 50,000 tons/month.

To increase the reliability of pipeline, company undertook work of replacement of failure

prone pipes and replaced 1 km pipe near Gonasika.

Company is weighing an option to inject a PIG called “Pathfinder”, which would have
sensors mounted inside the PIG, to record all pipe line Health data to assess the pipe line

condition.

The Company procured 2 additional transformers of 20 MVA and 25 MVA for uninterrupted
power supply from 132 KVA power line to the Beneficiation Plant and Pellet Plant. It would
be erected and commissioned during this year.

The Company is exploring to sell the low grade iron ore tailings evacuated from the Nalda
tailing storage facility in domestic and export market which would give additional space in
future for storing the tailings from the Beneficiation Plant. The Company has applied various
equipment for extraction of the tailings from the ponds. We are exploring its use for Pellet
Plant on proportionate basis without affecting the quality of the Pellets.
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In case of scheduled plant shutdown by Discom, the company has made arrangements
which would ensure immediate power changeover for running of the pumping system and

critical equipment without any forced shutdown.
4. Dividend

To maintain the liquidity of funds for meeting the future financial requirements of the
Company, the Board of Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial
year 2021-22.

5. Amount which the Company proposes to carry to any reserves

The Board of Directors has not proposed to carry any amount to any reserve account

during the year.

6. Projects and Expansion Plans

Pellet & Beneficiation Plant

Grinding circuit with capacity of 120 TPH at Pellet Plant, Jajpur has been commissioned in
June, 2021. This has helped in augmenting production capacity by 50-55K tons on monthly
basis to overcome the existing constraints of pipeline. This also helps us as top up for
guality as we can mix and blend different quality IOF at Jajpur with pipe line material to

change final composition up to some extent.

Online pigging launcher and receiver system has been commissioned in July, 2021 and we
have successfully launched various types of pigs to clean the line. This system has made
the pig launching and receiving as part of operation activity and needs no further

interruption of pipe line for pigging.

Construction of Raw material yard with shed at Pellet Plant to store Lime, Coke Fines and
Bentonite is completed. This has helped us to maintain similar production levels at Additive
Grinding Unit during monsoon seasons by keeping raw material free from excess moisture.

This has enabled continuous feed to plant during monsoon or unseasonal rainfall.

As part of continual improvement in operation practice, we have successfully blended Fuel
Oil additive (Thermol) in our Furnace oil which has resulted in significant saving in oil
consumption. It has given us a saving to the tune of 4-10% at different production levels of
the plant.

We have also incorporated usage of Organic binder along with Bentonite to absorb

additional moisture coming with Filter cake, this has helped us to do Proper Balling in the
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discs even during the moisture levels at up to 11% in filter cake. Further tuning of the

Organic binder addition is underway to reduce its consumption.

7. Change in the Nature of Business:

There were no changes in the nature of business during the period under review.

8. Disclosures under Section 134(3)(L) of the Companies Act, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which
could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the

financial year of the Company and date of this report.

9. Revision of Financial Statement

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.

10. Credit Rating

ICRA had initially rated the Company’s term loan and long term fund based and non-fund
based credit facility as A- (Stable). During the year, ICRA has upgraded the rating to A

(Stable) on the above facilities.

11. Deposits

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of section 73
of Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

12. Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.1000,00,00,000 divided into
100,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. As on March 31, 2022, the issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs.911,41,96,340
comprising 91,14,19,634 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

As on 31% March, 2022, none of the Directors of the Company hold convertible instruments

of the Company.

13. Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1. Board of Directors:

a) Composition & Constitution of Board of Directors:

During the year under review, there were following changes in the composition of the

Board of Directors of the Company:



Bratimane River Pellets Lid.

|\?(|3'_ Ngri?sc(::;:ge Details of Change Date of Change

1 Mr. P.K.Murugan Cessation as Nominee 30/06/2021
Director

2 Mr. P.K.Kedia Appointment as Nominee 01/07/2021
Director

3 Mr. Ashwini Vaishnaw Cessation as Managing 06/07/2021
Director

4 Mr. Ashok Kumar Bal Appointment as Additional 25/08/2021
Director and Managing
Director

5 Mr. Ashok Kumar Bal Change in designation from 24/09/2021
Additional Director to
Director

6 Mr. Ashok Kumar Bal Cessation as Managing 09/03/2022
Director

7 Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad | Appointment as Additional 10/03/2022
Director and Managing
Director

8 Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad | Change in designation from 17/03/2022
Additional Director to
Director

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors of the Company meet the criteria
of integrity, expertise and experience including that of the proficiency as ascertained from
the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Institute notified under sub-

section (1) of section 150.

The Board of your Company currently comprises 8 Directors out of which 3 are
Independent Directors including 1 Woman Director. The constitution of the Board of

Directors of the Company as on 315 March, 2022 is as under:

Sl

No Name of the Directors Designation

Nominee Director of JTPML & Chairman of

1 | Mr. P. K. Kedia the Board

2 | Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad Nominee Director of TPPL & Managing

Director
3 | Ms. Anuradha Bajpai Independent Women Director
4 | Mr. K. S. Anandan Independent Director
5 | Mr. Nagarajan Jambunathan | Nominee Director of JTPML
6 | Mr. Nagesh Pinge Independent Director
7 | Mr. Naman Saraf Nominee Director of TPPL
8

Mr. Santtosh Senapati Nominee Director of TPPL
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According to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Nagarajan Jambunathan
(DIN: 08066275) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and

being eligible have offered himself for reappointment.

b) Board Meeting & Attendance:

During the year under review, the Board of your company met Five (5) times. The details

of Board Meeting held and participation of Directors is enumerated below:

Sl. Date of the Total no. of No. of % of Attendance
No. Meeting Directors on the Directors
Date of Meeting attended
1 30/06/2021 8 8 100
2 25/08/2021 8 8 100
3 27/10/2021 8 6 75
4 01/02/2022 8 8 100
5 10/03/2022 8 8 100

The intervening gap between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Declaration by Independent Directors:

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
meet the criteria of integrity, expertise and experience including that of the proficiency as
ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the institute

notified under sub-section (1) of section 150.

2. Key Managerial Personnel:

15t April, 2021 to 315 March, 2022

Mr. Ashwini Vaishnaw Managing Director (up to 6" July, 2021)

Managing Director (From 25" August, 2021 up to 9" March,

Mr. Ashok Kumar Bal 2022)

Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad | Managing Director (From 10" March, 2022)

Chief Financial-cum-Commercial Officer (up to 315 March,

Mr. Nitin Kale 2022)

Mr. Suvendu Kar Company Secretary
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14. Board Evaluation

During the year, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance
as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees and individual Directors,
including Chairman of the Board. This exercise was carried out through a structured

guestionnaire prepared separately for Board, Committee and individual Directors.

The questionnaire for Board evaluation was prepared taking into consideration various
aspects of the Board’s functioning such as understanding of Board members of their
roles and responsibilities, time devoted by the Board to Company’s long term strategic
issues, quality and transparency of Board discussions, quality, quantity and timeliness of
the information flow between Board members and management, Board's effectiveness in
disseminating information to shareholders and in representing shareholder interests,
Board information on industry trends and regulatory developments and discharge of
fiduciary duties by the Board. Committee performance was evaluated on the basis of

their effectiveness in carrying out respective mandates.

The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole
and Chairman of the Company was carried out by the Independent Directors at a

separate meeting of the Independent Directors.

15. Committees of Board

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed

thereunder, the following committees of the Board are in place:

a) Audit Committee

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
d) Securities Allotment Committee

e) Finance Committee

a) Audit Committee:

The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Audit
Committee currently comprises of the following members:

1. Ms. Anuradha Bajpai, Chairperson

Mr. K.S. Anandan, Member

Mr. N. Jambunathan, Member

Mr. Nagesh Pinge, Member

a > w DN

Mr. Santtosh Senapati, Member
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The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as enumerated in the terms of
reference approved by the Board of Directors and as stated in the Companies Act,
2013. The Committee apart from other things is inter-alia responsible for the internal
control system and vigil mechanism system of the Company and the policy framed

thereunder.

During the year under review, the Committee met five times on 30/06/2021,
25/08/2021, 27/10/2021, 01/02/2022 and 10/03/2022.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company had accepted all

the recommendations of the Committee.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in conformity with
the provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made

thereunder. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of:

Mr. K. S. Anandan, Chairman
Ms. Anuradha Bajpai, Member
Mr. Naman Saraf, Member
Mr. P. K. Kedia, Member

P w DD P

The roles and responsibilities of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as
enumerated in the terms of reference approved by the Board of Directors and as stated
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company has devised the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the
appointment of persons to serve as Directors on the Board of your Company and for
the appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company, who have the
capacity and ability to lead the Company towards achieving sustainable development.

Your Company has also devised a Policy for Performance Evaluation of Independent
Directors, Board, Committees and other Individual Directors which includes criteria for
Performance Evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. On
the basis of the Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committees and other individual Directors, a process of evaluation was followed by the
Board for its own performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors.

During the year under review, the Committee met three times on 26/06/2021,
25/08/2021 and 10/03/2022.
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c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in conformity with
the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR Committee currently

comprises of following members:

Mr. Santtosh Senapati, Chairman
Ms. Anuradha Bajpai, Member

Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad, Member

A 0N PF

Mr. N. Jambunathan, Member

The roles and responsibilities of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as
enumerated in the terms of reference approved by the Board and as stated in the
Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and
the details of the development of the CSR Policy and initiatives taken by the Company
on Corporate Social Responsibility during the year are appended separately as

‘Annexure — A’ to this Board Report.

During the year under review, the Committee met three times on 26/06/2021,
27/10/2021 and 10/03/2022.

In addition to the above referred Committees, which are constituted pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the following major
Committees of the Board and delegated thereto powers and responsibilities with
respect to specific purposes. Time schedule for holding the meetings of these

Committees are finalized in consultation with the Committee Members:

d) Securities Allotment Committee:

The Securities Allotment Committee presently comprises of the following Directors as

its members:

1) Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad - Chairman
2) Mr. Santtosh Senapati -Member

3) Mr. Nagarajan Jambunathan -Member

The roles and responsibilities of the Securities Allotment Committee are as enumerated

in the terms of reference approved by the Board.

There was no Committee meeting held during the year under review.
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e) Finance Committee:

The Finance Committee comprised of the following members during the year:

1) Mr. Nagarajan Jambunathan —Chairman
2) Mr. Santtosh Senapati -Member
3) Mr. Nitin Kale -Member

The roles and responsibilities of the Finance Committee are as enumerated in the terms

of reference approved by the Board.

During the year under review, the Committee met four times on 23/08/2021, 25/08/2021,
27/01/2022 and 10/03/2022.

16. Internal Control System:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and

complexity of its business.

The Company has appointed M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors of the Company for Financial Year 2021-22 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the rules framed thereunder
and it reports to the Audit Committee of the Company. The Internal Auditors and the
Audit Committee are responsible for monitoring and evaluating the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating
systems, accounting procedures and policies. Based on the evaluation and the reports
submitted by the Internal Auditors, corrective actions in the respective areas are taken
thereby strengthening the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions

thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Internal Financial Controls:

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year under consideration, no reportable material

weakness in the design or operation was observed.

17. Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy for the Company:

The Board has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy for the

Company. The Policy includes, inter alia, the elements of risks which, in the opinion of
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the Board, may threaten the existence of the Company and their mitigation plans. The

implementation of the Policy is being monitored by the Board from time to time.

18. Vigil Mechanism:

The Board has, pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
framed “Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism” (“the Policy”). Your Company
believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner
by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical

behaviour.

This Policy has been framed with a view to inter alia provide a mechanism inter alia
enabling stakeholders, including Directors, individual employees of the Company and
their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or
unethical practices and to report genuine concerns or grievance as also to report to the
management concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation

of the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.

The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of
persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for access to the Chairperson of
the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of

the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee.

Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad, Managing Director is designated as the Ethics Counsellor.

19. Auditors and Auditors’ Report:

A. Statutory Auditors:

Under section 139 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells
LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration number 117366W / W100018 with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India) were appointed as Auditors of the Company
for a period of five years commencing from the financial year 2018-19 up to 2022-23 who
hold office from the conclusion of the 12" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company until the conclusion of the 17" AGM. The Auditors’ Report for the year 2021-22
does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimer by the
Auditors and hence do not call for any explanation or comments by the Board under
section 134(3)(f) of the Act.
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B. Cost Auditors:

Pursuant to Section 148(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit), Amendment Rules 2014, the Board on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, had reappointed M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost Accountants to
conduct the audit of the cost accounting records of the Company for the Financial Year
2021-22.

The cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is required to be maintained by the Company

and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained.

C. Secretarial Auditors:

As required under section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had reappointed
M/s. S. Srinivasan & Co., Practising Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for the
Financial Year 2021-22, who have submitted their Report which is annexed hereto as
Annexure — B and forms part of this Report. The report does not contain any
observation or qualification requiring explanation or comments from the Board under
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. Environmental and Safety Initiatives:

Our company has undertaken various measures to address safety and environmental

concerns at its plant locations, those includes the below:

e 51 National Safety Week celebrations were held at Plant locations of the company
with various activities like, Safety Quiz, Safety Poster, Safety Essay & Safety Slogan
competitions. Winners & other employees with best performances were awarded to
keep up the motivation.

e 33 National Road Safety Week was celebrated at Plant locations with awareness
sessions of truck drivers and company employees on use of crash helmets while
riding two wheelers, use of seat belts while driving four wheelers & heavy vehicles,
defensive driving & other road safety aspects.

e 2" National Electrical Safety Week 2021 has been celebrated at Plant location in
June, 2021 with electrical safety training programs, electrical safety inspections &
onsite sessions on electrical safety.

e Regular training sessions & demonstrations conducted for employees and

associates. Mock drills have been conducted along with firefighting trainings.
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o Regular Safety awareness to our employees and contractual persons on Covid-19.
Mock drills are being conducted along with first aid training to ensure the emergency
preparedness.

¢ Maintained log of safety observations with severity wise classification (on 1 to 5
scale) & reviewing the timely compliance of the observations.

e 3-Day First Aid Certification Training has been conducted for 25 participants from
different departments during December, 2021 by Certified First Aider.

e Load test of EOT cranes / pressure vessels & Chain blocks etc. completed.

e Load test of lifting machines, tools, tackles & passenger lift and external test of
pressure vessels has been conducted at Pellet Plant, Jajpur.

o Water Sprinkling system for the transportation road installed and commissioned for
dust suppression.

¢ Maintenance of Greenery & Land Scape developed inside Beneficiation Plant premises
and plantation of seasonal flowers. New greenery and land scape developed over an
area of 15000 sq.ft.

¢ Plantation of saplings done on the occasion of World Environment Day and saplings

trees distributed amongst the local villagers.

21. Related Party Transactions:

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act,
2013 during the financial year 2021-22 were in the ordinary course of business and
approved by the Board of Directors and Members of the Company. The disclosure of
material Related Party Transactions required pursuant to provisions of the Section
134(3)(h) read with section 188(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is given in ‘Annexure-C’

to this report.

Suitable disclosure on related party transactions, as required by the Indian Accounting

Standards has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

22. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments u/s 186 of the Companies Act,
2013:

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans or provided
guarantees or made any investment in terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013.
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23. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Requlators:

During the year under review, no orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or

Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations.

24. Annual Return:

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return is

available at http://www.brplpellets.com/.

25. Particulars of Emplovyees:

The Disclosures pertaining to particulars of employees as required in terms of the Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as ‘Annexure-D’.

26. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Your Company has an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. An internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at Company level to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees of the Company

are covered under this policy.

27. Secretarial Standards:

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively, have been duly

followed by the Company.

28. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies

Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating

effectively;
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c) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year

and of the profit and loss of the company for the year under review;

d) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

29. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo:

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding
conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and

outgo is annexed hereto marked as ‘Annexure-E’ and forms part of this report.

30. Appreciation:

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance
received from Government Authorities, Financial Institutions, Banks, Vendors,
Customers, Shareholders and other business associates during the year under review.
The Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the

committed services by all the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(P. R. Prasad) (P. K. Kedia)
Date:13™" May, 2022 Managing Director Chairman

Place: Bhubaneswar DIN: 07623862 DIN: 00020570



Annexure- A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

(Pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company- The CSR Policy is attached.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation /'] Number of meetings [ Number of meetings of
No. Nature of of CSR Committee | CSR Committee attended
Directorship heldduring the year | during the year
1 [Mr. Santtosh Senapati Chairman (Director) 3 1
2 |Ms. Anuradha Bajpai M_ember (Independent 3 3
Director)
. . Member (Managing .
3 |Mr. Priya Ranjan Prasad Director) 3 Not Applicable
4 |Mr. Nagarajan Jambunathan |Member (Director) 3 3

are disclosed on the website of the company. — www.brplpellets.com

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSRcommittee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) - Not

Appli

cable.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuanceof sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any- Not

Applicable
SI. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-
from preceding financial | off for the financial year, if
years (in Rs) any (in Rs)
1 _ _ _
) _ _ _
TOTAL ) )

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs.364.74 crore

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company asper section 135(5) - Rs.7.30 crore

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects orprogrammes or activities of the previous financial years.- NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢). — Rs.7.30 crore
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the
Financial Year

Total Amount transferred to Unspent

CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under

Schedule V11 as per second proviso to section 135(5)

(in Rs.)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount | Date of transfer
Rs.2,20,08,867 Rs.5,09,91,133 30/04/2022 Not Applicable NIL NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
()] @ ©)] O] O] (6) O] @®) © g 1)
SL'Nameof the | Item Local Location of the |Project] Amount Amount | Amount Mode Mode of
No. Project from area project duratio| allocated spent in | transferre | of Implementation -
the list | (Yes/ n for  the the d to Imple Through Implementing
of No) project (in current Unspent mentat | Agency
activiti Rs.) financial | CSR ion
es in Year Account Dire
Sched (inRs.) for the | ot
ule VII project as (Yes/
to the per Section No)
Act 135 (6)
(inRs.)
CSR
Registratio
State |District Name nnumber
1 |Provision off () Yes |Odisha| Jajpur |4 years| 30,00,901] 19,15,901 10,85,000( Yes Not Not
Solar Pumps Applicable| Applicable
with piping af
village-
Brahmanasahi off
Khurunti
2 |Sarangpur (i) Yes |Odisha| Jajpur }4years| 21,66,764 { 21,66,764 Yes Not Not
School Extension Applicable| Applicable
work in ongoing
projects of FY21
3 |Renovation of] (i) Yes |Odisha| Jajpur }4years| 64,72,713 4 64,72,713] Yes Not Not
Mangovindpur Applicable| Applicable
High School
4 [Providing street| (X Yes |Odisha| Jajpur }4years| 58,11,916| 50,81,120|  7,30,796( Yes Not Not
light at Applicable| Applicable
Sarangpur
village
5 [Cultural Mandap| (X) Yes |Odisha| Jajpur |4 years| 36,15,177| 4,87,599] 31,27,578[ Yes Not Not
at Khurunti Applicable| Applicable
Village
6 [Extention off Yes |Odisha| Jajpur |4 years| 1,45,58,800 -1 1,45,58,800| Yes Not Not
Kasia Road Applicable| Applicable
7 |Livelihood (iD) Yes |Odisha| Jajpur |4 years| 1 7g 49 482 -1 1,78,49,482| Yes Not Not
projectsin DIZ & Applicable| Applicable
Pipeline route
8 [Cluster (i) Yes [Odisha| Jajpur |4 years| 50 00.000 1 5000000 MNo Back To |CSR00006854
development for| o " Village
production of
aromatic oils L}tkal CSR00003291
Bipanna
such of Lgmon Sahayta
grass and mint Samiti
Total - - } } 5,84,75,753| 74,84,620[ 5,09,91,133 } } }

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:




@) &) 3 4 ®) (6) 0
SI.]  Name of Item from | Local Location of the project. | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
No.| the Project the list of area spent for | implementati | Through implementing
activitiesin | (Yes/ the on Direct agency
schedule No) project (Yes / No)
VII to the (inRs.) CSR
Act State District Name Registration
number
1 Education (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 9,49,250 Yes - -
2 Drinking (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 4,36,493] Yes - -
| water
3 Drinking (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 2,23,200 Yes - -
© | water
4 Education (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 3,60,000 Yes - -
5 Education (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 60,00,000 No Adivasi Vikash | CSR00020164
Samity
6 Social (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 6,00,000 No Sadbhabana CSR00010243
Security to
differently
abled Persons
7 Eradication of (i) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 2,63,000 Yes - -
Hunger and
Malnutrition
8 Ensuring (iv) Yes Odisha Jajpur 63,000} Yes - -
environmental
sustainability
9 Education (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 1,20,000 Yes - -
10 Health (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 6,70,000 Yes - -
1 Health 0] Yes Odisha Jajpur 9,68,800 Yes - -
12 Health 0] No Odisha Sambalpur 2,13,580) Yes
13 Drinking (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 79,766) Yes - -
water
14 Rural (x) Yes Odisha Keonjhar 77,158 Yes - -
Development
15 Livelihood / (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 15,00,000 No Back To Village| CSR00006854
Skill
development
16 Livelihood / (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 20,00,000 No Saunta Gaunta | CSR00015338
Skill Foundation
development
TOTAL - - - - 1,45,24,247 - - -

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) — Rs.2,20,08,867/-
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any - Not Applicable

SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 7,30,00,000
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,20,08,867
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous -

financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:




Sl Preceding Amount Amount spent | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
No. Financial | transferred to in the | under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if | remaining to
Year Unspent CSR reporting any. be spent in
Account under Financial Year succeeding
section 135 (6) (inRs.) Name of [ Amount (in | Date of transfer financial
(inRs.) the Fund Rs.) years (in Rs.)
1. 2020-21 5,36,93,750 4,68,68,868 - - - 68,24,882
TOTAL 5,36,93,750 4,68,68,868 - - - 68,24,882

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

1) ) (©)) 4) ®) (6) @) ®) 9)
SI. | Project | Name ofthe Project.[Financial [Project | Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. | ID. Year duration| amount spent on the | amount spent | project -
in . allocated | project in | at the end of
which the for the | the reporting Completed
project project reporting Financial /Ongoing.
was (in Rs.). Financial Year. (in Rs.)
commence Year (in
d. Rs).
1. |2020-21/1Providing of Drinkingl 55 51 | 4 years | 8,94,680 8,61,025 8,61,025f Ongoing
water facility
o, [P020-212fCovid-19 related) 500,51 | 4years | 16,44,484 . | ongoing
Projects
3, [2020-21/3 g:f\;@fR unit a8 5020.21 [3years | 5000000  50,00,000 50,00,000 Completed
4 [2020-21/4 3:\?.%& of EzeCheckl 500021 | 3years | 7497788  74.97.785 74.97,785  Completed
5 [2020-21/5|Mobile Hospital 2020-21 |4Years | 3387201 31,05,716 31,05,716]  Ongoing
6 2020-21/6|Renovation of School 4 years
Building, Construction| 2020-21 1,20,32,200; 83,88,260 83,88,260 Ongoing
of Toilets
7 2020-21/7 Construct_lon of 2020-21 | 4 years 7.64.704 6.42,687 6,42,687 Ongoing
Community Shed
8 2020-21/8 Construct_lon of 2020-21 | 4 years 8,46,506 5,78,085 5,78,085 Ongoing
Community Shed
9 2020-21/9 Construct_lon of 2020-21 | 4 years 6.52,783 5,36,540) 5,36,540) Ongoing
Community Shed
2020- [Construction of Pala | 2020-21 | 4 years .
10 21/10  |Manadap 29,19,284 28,91,916 28,91,916 Ongoing
2020- [Renovation of Kalyan | 2020-21 | 4 years .
11 2111 |Mandap 12,50,000] 5,62,751 5,62,751 Ongoing
12 2020- [Renovation of Youth | 2020-21 | 3 years 4,72,000) 4,72,000) 472,000 Completed
21/12 |Centre
2020- [Rural infrastructure — | 2020-21 | 3 years
13 21/13 |ouilding of Road 1,63,32,103 1,63,32,103 1,63,32,103] Completed
TOTAL - - - [5,36,93,750]  4,68,68,868 4,68,68,868 -

10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to theasset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year:
(Asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). — Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capitalasset. — Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.- Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
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capital asset). — Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5).- During the year the Company has spent Rs.2,20,08,867/- on CSR activities and an amount
of Rs.5,09,91,133/- relating to approved ongoing projects remained unspent due to the nature of Projects
being of multi-year and Covid-19 pandemic. Therefore, the Company has transferred the unspent amount

to an account maintained with scheduled bank as per section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brahmani River Pellets Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Priya Ranjan Prasad Santtosh Senapati
Place: Bhubaneswar Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee

Date: 13" May, 2022 DIN: 07623862 DIN: 00076219



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

1. Preface

Brahmani River Pellets Limited is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and Selling of
Iron Ore Pellets within and outside India. The company is having Beneficiation plant,
strategically located in Iron Ore mine area at Barbil in Keonjhar district and Pellet Plant at
Kalinganagar in Jajpur district of Odisha. Beneficiation plant and pellet plant are connected

with state of art Slurry Pipe line which run through 230 kms.

The Company is committed to creating more smiles at every step of the journey and is in
constant pursuit of making life better for communities with its various initiatives in the fields of

health, education, livelihood and sports along with art and culture.

The Company believes in inclusive growth to facilitate creation of a value-based and
empowered society through continuous and purposeful engagement of society

around.

The Company firmly believes in strengthening the social capital. It has adopted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy where it strives to address the social issues in and around its

plants.

Brahmani River Pellets Limited (BRPL) is committed to:

o Allocate at least 2% of its average Net Profits made during the three immediately
preceding financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility, as per the

categories mentioned in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013,

e Transparent and accountable system for social development and conducting
periodic assessments,

e Concentrate on community needs and perceptions through social processes and
related infrastructure development,

e Provide special thrust towards empowerment of women through a process of
social inclusion,

e Spread the culture of volunteerism through the process of social engagement.

FOCUS:

BRPL has decided to focus on the complete life cycle approach with specific interventions
are recommended as below:

o [Efficient maternal and child health care services



¢ Enhance access to improved nutrition services

e Access to safe drinking water at remote areas

e Early childhood education/ pre-primary education

¢ Completion of primary and secondary education

e Enhancing the output of present occupation

e Skill Development, Employability and vocational education

e Support various CSR initiatives as per guidelines of IMCO, Govt of Odisha.
STRATEGY:

BRPL allocates at least 2% of its average Net Profits made during the three immediately
preceding financial years for the planning and implementation of CSR. All the CSR initiatives

are approved by the committee and the same are reviewed periodically.

Taking a note of the importance of synergy and interdependence at various levels, BRPL

would adopt a strategy for working directly or in partnership, wherever appropriate.

o Priority to be given to the areas in the immediate vicinity of the plant locations defined as
Direct Influence Zone (DIZ). The policy enables plants to define their own DIZ with the
provision that this could be expanded as per the size of operations. However, certain
programs might be expanded beyond this geographical purview and upscaled. This

context is defined as Indirect Influence Zone (112)

o All the interventions would be formulated based on need assessment using different
guantitative and qualitative methods

o All the interventions would be adopted based on concurrent evaluation and knowledge

management through process documentation

e Social Mobilization, advocacy at various levels, and/or appropriate policy changes would

form part of the interventions in each sector

INTERVENTIONS:

In line with the approach and strategy, BRPL plans interventions in the field of health,
education, livelihood, skill development, vocational education, women empowerment,
environment sustainability and responsible citizenship. The key thematic interventions as

per the Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 include:

1. ERADICATING HUNGER, POVERTY, MALNUTRITION, ETC.:

BRPL as per its commitment to the local development and nation building shall initiate

various projects. Major projects planned under this theme over next three years include:



a. Soil and water conservation

b. Provision of Safe drinking water in remote areas.

c. Complimenting government schemes such as ICDS- Integrated Child Development
Scheme and NRHM — National Rural Health Mission (ANC, PNC, Immunization)

d. Entitlements- Facilitating access to government schemes

e. Linkages with the existing government schemes/ programs such as MNRAREGA,

PURA Model - Providing Urban Amenities in Rural Area model

'—h

Screening for disease such as TB, cancer, hypothyroidism, bone density, etc.

Improvement of the infrastructure of Primary Health Centre

° Q@

Awareness generation at the community level

Preventive measure to reduce the incidences of disease.

PROMOTING EDUCATION, SKILL DEVELOPMENT, LIVELIHOOD ENHANCEMENT
ETC:

Education is the basis for improving the quality of life of people. Taking a note of this,
BRPL both independently and in partnership with local government and civil societies
wants to undertake various programs. Along with this, enhancing the productivity of
available workforce through engaging the youth with appropriate employability skills and
assuring sustainable livelihoods continues as one of the top priority. The activities

planned under this theme include:

Improving the infrastructure of local schools

Financial Support to Gram Panchayat Schools for Teachers
Transportation facility for School Children

Training of teachers

Complimenting Mid-day meal program

Remedial classes for children with slow learning

~® 20 T ®

Life skill education, leadership and motivation of children

.

Support for adult / children with different abilities

Create opportunities for access to higher education

PROMOTING GENDER EQUALITY, WOMEN EMPOWEREMENT, ETC:

Women are the primary focus for development of the communities and the nation.
BRPL strongly believes in this philosophy. Major projects planned to substantiate this

include:

a. Skill building (vocational skills and employment)
b. Economic empowerment (SHGs and entrepreneurship)

c. Facilitating linkages for destitute and widow



4. ENSURING ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:

Nurturing the nature and adopting processes to enhance its sustainability remains a
major goal of the BRPL. As vigilant and responsible corporate, the major interventions

include:

Solid waste management
Sanitation and personal hygiene
Aforestation

Rainwater harvesting

Harnessing science and technology

-~ ® 20 T ®

Fostering Local innovations

5. PROMOTION OF RURAL SPORTS / TRAINING:

Sports training / Competition facilitation for following nationally recognized sports for

promoting and strengthening the sports in India:

a. Football
b. Volleyball
c. Cricket

d. Kabaddi

6. RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS:

Infrastructure development in rural area including road, toilets, lighting, community

centre, etc.

IMPLEMENTATION:

A. Implementing Agency:
The CSR activities would be implemented by:
a. BRPL when the activities are related to civil works involving construction of buildings,

roads, and other infrastructure related projects, direct financial support etc.

b. Recognized NGO or in participation with Government, Foundations or any other

institution with relevant expertise and experience in the sector
B. Annual plan would be prepared with clear quarterly milestones.

C. The surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities shall not form

part of the business profits of the Company.



Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

(0}

(0}

The Board constituted CSR Committee, along with the CSR team, shall be responsible for
the decision making with respect to the Company’s CSR policy.

CSR Committee shall recommend the CSR policy to the Board of the Company, and Board
of Directors shall approve the Company’s CSR policy.

The CSR Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan
consisting of the following:

a. The list of CSR programs that are approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects
specified in Schedule VII of the Act;

The manner of execution of such programs;
The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the programs;
Monitoring and reporting mechanism for the programs; &

© oo

Details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the programs undertaken by the
Company Provided that Board may alter the Annual Action plan at any time during the
financial year, as per the recommendation of its CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee shall meet regularly to review the implementation of CSR programs/
programs and give suitable direction

In case of an ongoing program, the Board of the Company shall monitor the implementation of

the program with reference to the approved timelines and year-wise allocation and shall be

competent to make modifications, if any, for smooth implementation of the program within the

overall permissible time period. “Ongoing Program” here means a multi-year program

undertaken by the Company in fulfilment of its CSR obligation having timelines not exceeding

three years excluding the financial year in which it was commenced, and shall include such

program that was initially not approved as a multi-year program but whose duration has been

extended beyond one year by the board based on reasonable justification.

Treatment with respect to unspent CSR amount

a.

If the Company fails to spend prescribed CSR amount, the Board shall, in its report specify
the reasons for not spending the amount unless the unspent amount relates to any
ongoing project and transfer such unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII,

within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year.

Any prescribed CSR amount remaining unspent pursuant to any ongoing project,
undertaken by a Company in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, shall
be transferred by the Company within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial
year to a special account to be opened by the Company in that behalf for that financial year
in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account,
and such amount shall be spent by the Company in pursuance of its obligation towards the

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three financial years from the date



of such transfer, failing which, the Company shall transfer the same to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII, within a period of thirty days from the date of completion of the third financial

year.

MONITORING MECHANISM:

A combination of various mechanisms would be adopted for the monitoring of the CSR

programs:

c. Monthly meeting by the CSR In-Charge to monitor the progress.
d. Quarterly monitoring by the Managing Directors and CFCO.
e. Half-yearly monitoring by the Board.



Office No. 5, 5" floor,

AC Market Building CHS Ltd.,
.. Tardeo Road, Mumbai— 400 034
S. Srinivacan &_ Ce.. Tel no.: 022- 2351 7505
Company Secretaries Mobile: +91 93210 25730
E-mail: mumbaissandco@yahoo.com

FORM NO. MR- 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

BRAHMANI RIVER PELLETS LIMITED
4TH FLOOR, IPICOL HOUSE,

JANPATH BHUBANESWAR KHORDHA,
ODISHA- 751 022

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by BRAHMANI RIVER PELLETS LIMITED
bearing (CIN: U271060R2006PLC008914 (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 appears to have complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, according to the
provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made there under.

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there
under (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

Registered office address: 2 Floor, Evalappan Mansion, 188/87, Habibullah Road, T. Nagar, Chennai- 600 017.
Mobile: +91 9841092661 | E-mail: ssrini50@gmail.com
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This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BRPL dated 27-04-2022

The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under.
(Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings.

(Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992; (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company during the period under
review as the Company is an unlisted company.

All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination and
reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems
and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
Secretarial Standards:

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
SS- 1 & SS- 2 has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under review.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or such other shorter
period which is permitted under the act, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors were carried through based on
majority and there were no dissenting views by any Member of the Board during the
year under review.
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This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BRPL dated 27-04-2022

We further report that,

Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and on the
review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Managing
Director taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other
designated professionals.

We further report that, during the audit period, there are no specific events/ actions
occurred which had any major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc.

For 8. Swicivasan & (o. .
Company Secretaries

S. Srinivasan

Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748
Date: 27-04-2022 UDIN: F002286D000221846
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To,

This forms part of our secretarial audit report of BRPL dated 27-04-2022

Annexure A

The Members,

BRAHMANI RIVER PELLETS LIMITED
4TH FLOOR, IPICOL HOUSE,

JANPATH BHUBANESWAR KHORDHA,
ODISHA- 751 022

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For S. Swinivasan & (o.,

Company Secretaries

S. Srinivasan
Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748
Date: 27-04-2022 UDIN: F002286D000221846
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Bratimane River Pellets Lid.

ANNEXURE - C

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Sl. Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount
No. | the related contracts / the contracts | the contracts or approval paid as
party and arrangements / arrangements or by the advances,
nature of / transactions | arrangements transactions Board if any
relationship | / Justification | /transactions including the
of transaction value, if any
(a) (b) (©) (d) (e) (f)
1 | JSW Techno | Pellet Offtake L 16/03/2021 Nil
Projects agreement Perpetual Sale of Pellet
Management to shareholders
Ltd. in their
(Joint __shareholding
Venturer) ratio at cost +
2 Thriveni Pellet Offtake fixed margin as | 16/03/2021 Nil
Pellets Pvt. agreement Perpetual per Pellet
Ltd. Offtake
(Holding Agreement.
Company)
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
No. | Name(s) of Nature of Duration of | Salient terms of the | Date(s) Amount
the related contracts / the contracts contracts or of paid as
party and arrangements / arrangements or | approval | advances,
nature of / transactions/ | arrangements transactions by the if any
relationship Justification | /transactions | including the value, | Board
of transaction if any
(a) (b) (©) (d) (e) (f)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
(P. R. Prasad) (P. K. Kedia)
Date:13"" May, 2022 Managing Director Chairman

Place: Bhubaneswar DIN: 07623862 DIN: 00020570



Bratbmane River Pellets Lid.
ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

Statement of the Employees covered under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(a) Employed throughout the financial year 2021-22 and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs.1,02,00,000/- or more - During the year the

following employee of the Company was in receipt of remuneration aggregating to Rs.1,02,00,000/- or more under the said provisions:

Sl. | Name of the | Perso- Designation Remuneration| Qualifications Experience| Date of com- Age Last employment held
No. employee nnel received (years) mencement of| (years)
No. (Rs.) employment Employer’s name | Post held
1 | Mr. Nitin 1379 | Chief Financial- 1,29,16,329 CMA and CS 31 23/02/2018 55 JSW Steel Coated | AVP (F&A)
Kale cum-Commercial Products Ltd.
Officer

(b) Employed for a part of the financial year 2021-22 and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs.8,50,000/- per month or more

Sl. | Name of the | Perso- Designation Remunerati| Qualifications Experience| Date of com- Age Last employment held
No. employee nnel on received (years) mencement of| (years)
No. Rs. in lakh) employment Employer’s name Post held
1 - - - - - - - - - -

(1) In accordance with the clarification given by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, remuneration has been computed on the basis of the actual expenditure
incurred by the Company.
(2) None of the above employees was a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company.

(3) None of the above employees was in receipt of remuneration during the year which, in the aggregate, was in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director
or Whole-Time Director and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(P. R. Prasad) (P. K. Kedia)
Date:13"" May, 2022 Managing Director Chairman

Place: Bhubaneswar DIN: 07623862 DIN: 00020570



Bratmanc Tiver Pellets Lid,

ANNEXURE E

Particulars Regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of Energy:-

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy

1.Two nos of slurry tank agitator are now converted to
Variable Frequency drives. This helps in conservation
of power and also reduces load on Generator during
Power Outage time.

2.All plant conventional light fittings (HPSV) / CFL have
been replaced by LED fittings at Beneficiation Plant and
Pellet Plant.

(i) the steps taken by the company for utilising
alternate sources of energy

(i) the capital investment on energy | -

conservation equipment

Technology absorption:-

(i) the efforts made towards technology | 1.Blending of combustion catalyst-THERMOL in

absorption; Furnace oil in 1:2000 ratio has given us considerable
saving in Furnace oil consumption.
2. We have also started using Organic Binder along with
Bentonite which helps in processing higher moisture
material resulting improvement in quality of green balls
and reduction in recycle percentage

(i) the benefits derived like product | -

improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution;

(i) in case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)-

Not Applicable.

(a) the details of technology imported;

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;
and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and
Development.

NIL

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual
inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of
actual outflows.

Actual inflow: Rs.37.79 crore
Actual outgo: Rs.11.08 crore

Date:13"" May, 2022
Place: Bhubaneswar

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(P. R. Prasad) (P. K. Kedia)
Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 07623862

DIN: 00020570




DE I n itt'E E‘haFTnl-:n mrhfw';sdgéi:ri

Do Ma. B2, 8.T.T. Caluny
- . il
Haskins & SellsLLP fo i o

Tel. +%1 427 BB GLiD

INDEFENDENT ALUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Memberz of Brahmani River Pellata Limited
Report an the Audit of the Financial S5tatemsnt=

Dpinion

We have auditcd the accompanying fAnanoal statements of Brahmani River Pellets Linmbed (the
“Cornpany™], which comprse tre Balance Sheet 35 at 31 March 2322, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss [including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement ard tho Statement of
Changes wt Equity for the year fthen ended, and 2 summary of significant zccounting policies and
other explanatory infonmation.

In owr opirnon ard ko the oest of cur informatiors and eocording to the egplanations given 1o ws, the
aforesad hnandal sbatements give the information required by the Compan.gs Act, 2013 [“the At}
i the manner so required and giwve a true and fair wiew in conformiby with the [Acdhan SoCaunting
Standargds prescribed wader section 133 of the ACt read with the Companies [Indizn Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS™] and cther acoounting principles gendrally accephed
i ndha, of the stabe of affairs of the Company 25 ab 31 March 2022, and its orofit, tgtal
camprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the pear ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We comducted our audit of the financial statements in accerdance with the Stendards on Suditing
cpeciied wrdof sechon 1A3010% of the &40k [SAS), Qur responsitbbes undar those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements Secton of
Qur TR0, We are independent of the Company i accardance with the Code of Ethies issued by the
institute af Chartered Accountants of lndia {[CA[) together with the cthical requaremenss that are
rrelewant poocr aaght af the fingpcial stakerments pnder the grossoons of the &ck and the Rules made
thereunder, and we hawve fulfilled our octher etincal responsibilities i accordance witn these
requirements and the [CATs Code of Etiies, We beleve that the 2udit evidence ohtained by us is
sufficient and appropnate to pravide a bass for our avdit apinion on the financial statements.

Infprmation Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditar's Report Thereon

+ The Company’s Beard of (hreciors 15 respgnsible for the other information. The ather infarmat:on
camprises the imformation included in the Directer's report but does rot indude the financial
statements and aur guditer's repart theraom,

= Dgr gpenign on the fimanoal statements does ngb cower the otiner nformanon and we da not
express any form of assurance conclusian thereon.

= In conncct:ion with our awvdit of the financial statements, ocur rcsponsibibby 25 ta read ehe ather
information and, n daing 50, consider whether the other infarmanan 5 matenally oonsistent
with the financial statements, ar our knowledge obtained during the course Of pur audit or
shliErwsae Jppears b b mabenally risstaied,

o IF, based on the wark we have perfammes, we conclude that ther® is 3 materlal misstatement of
this pther infermatign, we are required to repgrt that fact. We hawve nothing to report in this
ragard.
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Mapagement's Responsibility far the Finapcial Statements

The Company™s Board of Dirgctors & rasponsible for the matters stated in section 134¢5] of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that e a true and far view of e
hnamcial posibon, hnanoial performance inCludming gbhar cormprehansive income, cash Mows and
changes in couity of the Campany in accordance wath the Ind AS and sthér aoCouniing ponciples
genetaily accepbed i India, This responsibubty alsg inclydes mamtenance of adequate accounting
recorcs in accordance with the pravisions of the Act for safeguarding the agsets of the Company and
for prevonbing and detecting Trauds and other irregulanbes, selection and apphcation of appropniate
accourbing policocs; making judgments and estimates that are reasanablée and pudent,; and Sesign,
implementation and mantenance of adequate Internal Tnancial centrals, that were operating
cffectively for onsurng the eccuracy and compleconess of the accounting recérds, relewant S the
preparation and presentation of the finanoal statement Lhat gree 3 true and far view and z2re free
from matenal m:sstztemeant, whether due to fraud or crrar.

In preparing the financial statements, manzgement is respons.ble for assessing the Company's
abiity to conbwue 25 3 gonre) Conceen, dieclasing, 35 apahicabde, matkers related 10 gong concern
and using the going concern basis of accosnting unless management either intends to ligqued ake the
Company or 10 COase operanans, or Ras no realstic alternative but bW do 50,

Those Baard of Dhrgctors are 2lsd responsible for aversecing the Company's finandal reporhing
Pra0esE.

Auditar's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Thur obpectives are to obta.n reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from materal misstacement, whether due ta fraed gr crear, and 1050 an dudier's report
that inciudes our apimen. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 8 guarantoo
that a9 audtt conducked in accord ance with SAs will always detect a material misstaiement when i f
exists. Misstateneants can arise from fracd or errgr and are cansidered matenal of, indwidwally or in
the acgregate, Lhey Could seasonably Be expested to influened the ecanamic derisions of usors taken
an the bas:s of these financial statements.

A part gf an gught v gccordance wakh SAs, we exercse professional judgment and mairtain
professional skepbicsm throughout the aocit. We alus;

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statemmerbs, whether due
to fraud or errgr, des gn and perfanm audit pracedures responsive 1o those nsks, and cbiain audit
ev:dence that is sufficient and appropriabe bo provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not
detecting 2 matenal misstatoment resulting from fraud o5 leghar than for gne regsultng from error,
as fraud may invalye collusion, forgery, intentional cmiss ons, misrepresentatians, or the override
of internal control,

+ Qbtzin an understandrg of iaterna inandial control rélevant fo the sudis in order to design audit
procedures that are appropnate in the orcymstances. Linder sectian Ld3[ 300 of tne Aok, we are
230 responsable far sxpregsing sur opineg on whether the Company has adegquate mnkcrnal
financial controls system n place and the gperating effectivenegss of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poliges used and the reasonablengss of accounting
eistimnates and related desclosures made by Lhe managemant.
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» Conclude on the appropriatengss of management’s use of the going eancern basis of aciounting
and, based on the audit ewiderce obtamned, whether a matenal yncertainty exists related 1o
ayants gr conditions that may cash sigmficant doubt on the Company™s abibty L Conbinue as a
Qi Conce g, IF we conclude that a mater@l uncertanty exsts, wa are recyired to draw attentoaon
in gur auditgr's repast 1o the related disclosures in the financial statermnents or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, b madify aur Spirgn, Our Corclusons are based on the audit evidence obtaimned
WP ke the daie of our agdiior's report. However, future events or condibicns may cause the
Company bh 208t IS Cantmue a5 & going concon,

« Evaloate the averall presentation, stoacture, and content of the fnancial statements, including
the disclgsares, argd whether fhe finanoal shatements cepresent the underlying trensathons ard
ewEntS i A rmannér that achieyes Far presentaimn,

Materiality 15 the magnitude of missiatements in the firandal statements that, mdwduglly or n
aggregate, makes :© probahle tinat fhe economic degisions of a reasocnably knawledgeable v=er af the
nnarcial statements may be inCeenced. We congider quanbikative materality and qualitatve factors
i {1) planmirg the scope of gur audit wark and 0 evaluating the resu'ts of our work; and (i) to
evaluaie the «fect of any entified misstatements in the Foancial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governande reganrding, amaong other matters, the planngd
scope and bim:ng of the aedit and mgrificant audit findings, wmclyding any significant defciencies in
intenal contrel that we identify during our audit.

we also provide thase charged with govermance with a stabtrment thab we hawe Comphed wikh
relevant ettucal reguirements regarding dependence, and tp commumcate with thom all
relatiansmips and other matters that ray reascnably be thought S bear or oor Ndepencens, ang
wherg apahicablg, related safegquands.

Report on Other Legel and Regulatory Requirementy
1. a5 regquered by Section L4303) of the AcE, hased on gur audhit we report that:

a, We have sought and oalned 2l the snformabion and explanatens which fo the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b !m our apin.on, proper boaks of account as reguired by law have been kept by Lhe Cormpany
so lar as it appears from our examirabon of those books,

t. The Balanoe Shect, the Staberment of Profit and Less incfuderg dthar Comprefensive [ncoma,
the Cash Flow Statement angd Statemeant of Changes in Equity Cealt with by this Fepart are in
agreament with the relevant books of gccount.

d. In our opnion, the aforesaid financa) statements comply with the ind AS spedlisd under
Sochon 133 of the act,

e, i Lhe basis of the whkken represontations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken an recard by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disgualified a4 an 31 Manch
2022 Trom beng appounted as a director in terms of Secbon 166(27 of the act,

f, With respect to the adequacy of the inbemal hinandal controls over ingnoal repocting of the
Company and the pperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate repert in
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mAnnexure A" Qur repart expresses an unmodificd apinion &n the adeguacy and operating
effectivencss of the Company’s internat finandial controls over financal reporting.

3. Whtn respect to the other matters to be included in the aupditgr's Regort in accordance with
Lhe requirements of sechion 1970167 of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion 2nd o the best of gur infermation and aoccarding to the @xplandlions qgueern b
us, the remuneration paid by the Company teoats direckars dunng the year is in accord ance
wokh Lhe arowiguons of section 197 of the Act.

h,owWith respect o the gther matters bp be andluded an the Adudibo~'s Repart in atcasdancs w.th
Fule 11 of the Compan-es (Audt and Audiiors) Rules, 2014, a5 amendad 10 our opinion gnd
to the besh of oor informatian and accgnding to the explanations given to us:
1. The Company has gisclosed the impact f pending lingations on ats inancal posibon
i b5 finangal statoments,

0, The Company did gt kawe 2y long-tarm contracks including derivative dankraces for
which there were any matcrial foreseeable [b5Ges,

ni. There were no amounts which were requircd £ be fransferred [0 tne Dnvesbor
Education and Probocion Fund by the Company.

(a] The Management has represented that, (o the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed an the note 43(vi] ta the Mnancial statements no funds have Ceen
Advaneed ar oaned or inyested [(£:fher from Yoreowed funds ar skare pramiloem or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company (o ar i any other parsan(sh
or  eptby(es),  incleding  foreign enbbes  (Cintermediaries™), with  the
ynderstanding, whether recorded in writing or othemwese, that the Intermodany
shall, dwrectly ar indiredily end o wwest in ather persons or entities ideatifiod in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ["Utmate Beneloarigs”)
or provide ary Quarantes, securkty of the ke on behall of the Lltimate
Benefigianes.

(B3] The Management has represented, that, to tne best of it knowiedge and Geliel,
as disclosed in the fote A30wh o the Ginzncial statements, ng funds have been
recaved by the Commpany from any personis) or entibp(es), meluding forcigre
entities {“Fonding Parties™], with the understanding, whather recarded in wrling
ar ghheswse, Engs the Company shall, dirgctly or indiroctly, lend or invest in other
persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoover by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {TUItimate Benefoangs™} or provide any guarantee, securniby or the
hke an behalf of the Ulthmate Beneficiaries.

(¢] Based on he audit procecures that has been considered rcasanable and
appropriate in the crcomstances, nothing bas eome ba gur nobce Lhat has caused
s bo Beliewe LRat Ehe represantations under sub-clause (i) and (i) af Rule 11{=a},
35 provided pnder [a) and (b} above, contain any matenal fmissLagement.

v. The company has not declared or pard any dradend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend fior the year.
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2. As reguired by the Companmies {Auditor's Repart) Grder, 2020 {"the Order™y 155ued by the Camtral
Government in berms of Seckion 143{ 11 of the Act, we given "Annexure BT a statement on the
matters spec:hed n paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Grder.

For Delajtte Hazking and Sells LLPE
Chartered Accountants
(Firnns Registratgn Mo, 117166WW- 1000 14]

b BALE

Knishn& Prakash E

{Partrner]

(Membestip Mo 21601%5]
(UDLN; 222100 15AK[FPD2E3E]

Place: Cowmbatore
Date: May 13, 2022
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AMMEEURE "A" TO THE INGEPEHDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT
[(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) undar "Report on Other Legal and Regufatary Requirements”
#attion of our repart af even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Contrals Qwer Firangial Reporting under Clavse (i) aof Sub-
section 3 of Sectlon 143 of the Companios Act, 2013 (“"the Act™)

We kave quiited the mbernal financial contrals over Tmancial reposfing of Brahmani River Pollats
Limized (the "Campany”] a= af 21 March 2033 n conjunction wath qor aodit of the [nd 45 finang:al
statements of the Company for the year ended an that datke.

Management's Responsibility for Tnternal Financial Controls

Tne Company's management 13 responsible for establishing and mantaning nteensl financial
controls based on the internal conkrgl ower fnangial reporing chitena establshed by the Company
considenng the essonnial components of mbemal contred stated 0 tne Guidance Wote on Audit of
Internal Fricancial Controls Sver Finanogl Beporting ssuad oy the Instibute of Charered acoountgnts
of [ndha. These responsmlities include the design, implementabon and maintenance of adequate
internal Nnancal contro's that were pperating effectvely for ensunng the orderly and efioent
conduet of k5 Dusmess, ncluding adhereacs b respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its aszets, the provention and detection of frayds and enrors, the accuracy and completenass ofF [k
aocalnt:ng records, and the timely préparaten of reliable firanoal wmfermation, as reguired under
the Comparies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respanisi bty b5 th @dxpress an gpragn on the Company s internal finanodl conbrg!s over finand gl
repocting of the Company Dased on Sur audit. We cancucted our audit 10 accorcance with the
Curdarce Motbe on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Jver Fvancial Repartng (Lhe "Guidance Note )
issded by Lhe insotube of Chartered Acesuntants of !nda and the Standards on Auditing prescrised
under Section 1430107 of the Companies AT, 2013, bo the extent appiicabie o a0 audit of inteenal
finandal controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Wobe requirc that we comply with ethical
requircments and plan ard parform the aadt o obtan reasonable asserande about whether
Adeguate internal fmancal controls over finanoal reporting was established and maintained and Jof
such conirols aperated offectvely in all makcn gl resmpecks,

Our audit invalves parferming procedures Lo obtain audit evedence about the adeguady af the atemal
finanoa! contmls system aver financial reporting and toeir operating effectwveness. Jur aucht of
internal financal contrgls aver financal reporting included ebtaiting an understanding of inkemal
hnancadl contrals over financial reparting, assessing the risk thar @ matenal weakness exisis, and
testing and ewvaluahng Lhe design and operabing efectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The pracedures selected depend o0 the auditas's Judgement, including tho asscssment
of the risks of matenal messtagement of the Nnancisl statements, whetner due to fraud ar error.

We pehoye [hat [he aoudik ervidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bacis
for aur audit opimon an the Company's internal Anandal controls sysiem ower Iinancial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Finandal Cantrefe Ower Flnencial Reporting

& company's internal Dirancal conbral ower hinanoal feparting 15 & process designed [0 prowvide
reasondable assurance regarding the reliabihty of fnancial reporting and the prepasabisn of linancial
statements for exiernal purposes in aocordance with generally Jocepbed accouniing praciples, A
company's internal financial contral over financial reporting includes those policies and procéedyres
that (1] pertam [a the maintenanee of records that, io reasonable deval, accwrately and famly reflect
the transactions angd dispasitdong of Che gassets of the company; [3) provido reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary b opernd preparatsen of hnancal statements in
accordance witin generally acconted accounting principles, and that receipts and cxpenditures of the
Carpany are bimng emade anly 10 dccordance with authoerisatodn s of M e Ny and gwactors of the
company; and [3) provide reasgnakle assurangn regarding prevention or timely debection of
undukthonsed acquisition, cie, or disposition of the cormpany's asiels that could haye 8 makenal
effect on the fimantial stetemneants.

Inherent Limitationz of Intepnal Financgial Conkroty Over Finangial Reporting

Because of the inhorent imikatgns of nkemal finanoal controls gver fingrcial repodting, includ:ng
the possibility of collusion or improper management avernade of contrals, material misstatemenis
due to error 7 fraud may cfcwr and not be detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the
internal fimancial ¢ontra’s over financial reporting to future penods are subject bo the nck ghat the
internal firangial contrel over financial reporting may o2ecome inadequats because of changes
conditeen s, or Lhat the degree of compliarce with the policies or procedurgs may deks riorate.

Opinien

Inoeur opnlan, ba the best of dur nfarmatlan and accoarding b the exolanatlons gleen e us, the
Company has, o all matenal caspects, an adequate internal finarcial controls systam aver finanoal
reparting and such internal financial cantrols ower financial reparting were cperating &fectively as
at 21 March F0OZZ, based on the crterg for mternal finansal contral ower fmancial reporting
estabrlished by the Company cansidering the cssental componoents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Inbernal Finanoal Controls Ower Fuianoal Reporting issued by the Insbiiute
of Cha—tered Accountants of [ndia.

For Defaltte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accguntarts
[Firm‘s Registration Mo, 11 72366%W0-100018]

o B

Krishina Prakash E

[Partner?

(Membership HNo. 216015%]
(UDIM; 222 180 10AKIFPDZGIE]

Flace: Combatore

Caka: May 13, 2022
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AMNENURE B TO THE INGEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred Yo tn paragraph {2) upder ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
etction of vur report of ayven data)

I beerrms of the infaomation and egplanations sooght by us and givéen by Lthe Comgany and the bogks
of account and raconds exanmnad by usin the nosma. course of audit and to the Lest of our knpwladge
and belief, we state that:

fifay A The Campany has maintained proper records showing il particolars, ineludirg quanbitatwe
cetals and sispatien of Froparty, Piant and Equipment and Capital wark-m-prograss.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full parbiculars aof ntangible assets,

C3(0) The Proparty, Plant angd Equpment werd phy 5iC3lly wonfied dunrg the vaar by the Management
which, in our opinien, provides far physical verification at reasonable intervals. Mo matenal
discrapancies were nobced on such wenfication,

{N{z) Based on the exarunabon of the rogistered sale desd prowoded 1o s, we report that, the title
deeds ol al the immovable prope-ics of land ard bui'dings (other than immavable properties where
the Company 15 the lessee and the oase agroements are duy execubed w favour of the Company)
d:5clesed in the Snancal statements incivded in property, plact and eguiament and capital work-in-
progress, are held in the name of the Corpany a5 at the balance sheer date, Immovatie prope e
of land and Bui'dings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name
af the Company based an the confrmaions directly recered by os fram 1enders,

(] Thre Company has not revalued any of 55 property, plant and equiprment (including rghg-af -
use gssels] and intangible assers during tne year.

[i1[&] Mo proceedings hawve been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
31 March 2022 for holding any benami propery urder the Bepami Transactions (Profbitoa) Act,
1989 [as amendecd .o 2016} and rules made thersynder.

[in){a) The inventories except For goods-in-{ransit, woerne physicaliy venheyd durng the yvear by the
Management ab cedsonable interyals, Ine osr opicesn and acéérdmg e the rifarmation  and
explanations given i LS, the coverage and procedure of such wvenhcatign oy the Managerent s
AJ0reprate fdving regard to the size of the Cornpany and the nature of its operations. In respect of
goods-in-transit, the goods have hean racened subsequent to the year-end. No discrepancies of
10% ar mare in the aggregate for e2ck class of invenbones were not:ced or such physical verification
of inventgries when compared with bogks of account.

(B According 10 the wformabion and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
wiérking camtal limts in excess of Rs. S crores, in aggregate, at pants of time during the year, from
Barks or inancal nsttutions on the basis of secunty of current assets, [ oor gpanion and according
to the informaticn and explanations given to us, the quarterdy rotunns gr staiemenis comansimng
[abock statements, book debt staterments, staberments on ageing analysis of the debtors and other
stapulated finanoal infarmation] filed by the Company with such banks or finangeal institubions are 0
agrecment with the ondudibed Books of acccont of the Company of Lhe respective guarters and noe
matarial discrepancies have haen abhserved.

Ciiny The Company has not made any investments i, provided any guaranbes or security, and granted
any oans or advandes in the nazore of loans, secured or onsedured, to companies, Tinms, Limibed
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Liabkilty Partnerships or any other parties curing tine year, ard hence reparting under clause (i} of
the Qrder o nol apploable,

(iyfa) The Compary has #or provided asy 1oans or adwances in the natere of lgans or Stood
guarantce, or provided saganty (o any other entity dunng the year, and hence reporting under clapse
fun{a) of the Order i3 not apphcabie,

{1 ACCordineg Do informatinn ard exslanation Given ba us, the Campany hias nakt grantesd any 10ans,
made investments or provided gearantees or securibies thal arg covered under tne prowvisians af
sacbons 1ES or 186 of the Companies Act, 2003, and herce reparting urder Jlause (iv) of the Order
is not appl.cable.

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposit or ameunts which are deemod Lo be deposts. Hence,
rOROLING unger clause [v] of the Order s no: applicable.

(1] The mamberance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148{1) of the Compar:gs Act, 2017 for ores and mengral products. We have broadly reviewed the
oooks of acoount maintamed by the Compdny pursuant bo the Comparies [Cost Recerds and Aud.t]
Rulecs, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Governmant for mamntenange of cost records
wngar Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are cof the opinior: toat, prma facie, the
prescnbed cost records nave been made angd mantained by the Cormpany. We nave, owewor ok
ot 3 detaled exdaminstion of the cost recasds with a view to determing whether they are accuorate
or complete.

{wii] In respect af statyiory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dugs, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fungd, Empiovees”
Srabe [mSurante, Incame-tas, duty of Custom, cecs and other material statutory ducs
apphcable 1o the Company have been regulany deposited by it wikh the appropriate authonbios
in al eases during the year.

Theere: weere b uncisputed amourts payable 1n respeoct of Goods and Sepace tax, Provident
Fund, ingome-tak, duty af Custam, 058 and gtbher mabenal statuiory Jues i arredrs 25 at 31
March 2022 fior a peried of more than s montins from the date they became payable.

tb] Details of statctory dues referred to in sub-clause (@) abowe which have not been
ceposited ason 31 March 2022 on account of dispubes are Qiven belaw;

MName af stabule [Mature of dues |Amount invelved| Period to which Farum whers
{Rs. Crore] the amount dispute is
relates pending
Central Bxcise ack, 1944 CENVAT credie gz 2012-2013 CESTAT
Central Excise #ct, 1944 CENYAT cradit 1.21% 2012-2017 CESTAT
Central Cwcise Ack, 1943 CEMYAT credit .03 2017 Coerr i A5 Nt -
Appeals
Customg Ack, 1962 ICustoms Dury 22,23~ 2HIE-2010 CESTAT
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|Mame af statute Mature of dues | Ampunt (avolved | Perad te which Farum wherg
{A%. Crore} the amount dispute %
relates panding
Ovhsha, value zdded Waloe added Tax Qo2 Cetaber 2015 ko C O TS e T
Tax Act, 2004 une 217 Appeals
ncopme Tax Ack, 1961 |Income Tax .43 Fr 2013-14 CIT Appeals
[mewrme Taw Act, 1961 |Income Tax 042 Fy 2Q16-17 CIT Appeals ]

& Excluchng pemaliy of Rs, .47 crase and net of Rs, C.05 crore paid under probest
* Exciutdmng penalty of Rs. 2.36 crore and net of Bs. 215 crore pand under probest
< Net of Bs. 1 80 crore paid wnder protest

~ Edgludimg penalty of Rs. 003 crare and net of Bs. .01 crore pa:d ungder arobest

[wini] THire were no transactions reiatng to previously unrecorded sncome thiat were surmengergd or
disclozed as imcome @ [he Lav 255058ments under bhe Income Tax AcL, 1965 (43 of 1961) duning the
wikdr,

Lixi[a) [m sur apmicn, the Company has not cefaulted in tke repayment of loans or gther bormow ngs
or in the payment of intgrast Lhergon 1o any lender dur:reg Ll year,

(x)B] The Company has ngr been dedlared willful defaulter by any pank or firancal msbtuton or
Joner et or any government authanty.

L)) The Company has not taken any term lgan curing the year and there are ng unutilised term
lpans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clavse (ix](e) of the Order is not
applicable.

Lix1[d] On an cwerall examination of the finangial statoments af the Company, fLnds rased o0 shioet -
term basis have, prima facwe, not been used dunng the year for l[Gng-term purposes by the Company.

Oxile) The Company did m Rave any subsidiary or associate or jont venture during the year and
hence, reporting under ciguse (ix](e] of the Qrder 5 nol apphoabie.

(ix)(f) The Company has not rased loans dunng the year on the pledge of securibies held in its
subs:hanes ar ant ventures or assaciate companes.

[x¥ a3y Tho Company has not issued any of its secunties [incleding debt instromeants] during the year
and honce regorting uadar Clapse (@) of the drder s oot applcatle,

tx}b} During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placermnent
of shares or convertibfe debentures [fully or partly or optionally) and henge regorting under clzusa
(b} of the Grder o5 0ot appiicable Lo the Company.

(xi)fa) To the best of our knowledge, ne fraud by the Campany and né matenal fraud on the Company
has beer noticed or reported during the wear.

(xil[b] To the best of our kngwledge, ng report ynder sub-secoion [12) of secton 142 of Lhe
Companies At has Been filed in Forrm ADT -4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Campanies [Audit and
Audibors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governmeant, dunng the year and uplo the daee of this repart.

{xil(c} As represented to us by the Management, there ware ng whistle Dlgwer complainks reeeived
by the Company during the year,
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{w0] The Company 15 nok a Ml Company and heade reporting uader Jlause (xnd of the Order 15 not
apphcablo.

{=1in] Tn our opinian, the Company is in complanoe with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
whgre apphcable, for all fransactions with the mlated parties and the deraits of related pary
transactions hawve been disclozed in the finangial statements et;. 3s requered by the applicaple
ACCoUnDng standards,

(e ]3] In our apenion Lt Company bas an adedquate mbeendl audit Sysbemm commensurake wikth the
size and the nature af its husiness.

[Zee][ b} We have considersd, the mternal 2udik repors 1ssuad Lo the Company durning the year angd
Cawering the percd feorm 01 Apnl 2021 ke 31 Marcn 2022, for the penod under audik.

(xv} 10 Qur Spinion dering the year the Company has not entered nto any non-cash transactions
wiath its directors ar parsans connected with ks girectors and hence prodsons of section [92 of the
Companecs Bt 2013 are not dpplicable to the Company.

Lawil(a] The Compasy 5 net required bo be regstered cnder section #5-LA of the Reserve Bank of
Intha Act, 1934 Henge, repgrting under clause {wa{a), (b)) and (£} of the Dirder 15 npt apphicakbe,

[wvii] Tne Company kas not ncurred Cash osses during the fnanodl year covered by aur audit 2nd
Ll irmreedh aeely precéeding hirancial year.

(xvini} There Bas been nd résignaton of the stabutory auditaes of the Company during the year,

[¥ix] On the Basi: af Lhe finsnclal ratlas, agelang ang papected dates of realizatlon of fnanslzl assets
and paymeni ¢f financal hathtgs, othar wformaton 3ocompanying the finaaoal statoments and our
kv e dgee af the Baiard of Directors and Management plans and based on oue examinacian of fhe
gvidence suppoming tha assuniptigns, nothing has come 0o dur atteniion, which Causes us 1o b i
Lhat anry matenal uncertainty exists as on the date of the acdit report indicating that Company is nok
capable of meeting o5 habitihes gsting at the date of balance sheet 35 and when they fall due withir
a pened of are year srom the balance sheet date. We, hewever, state that thes s not an assgrance
as to the future viabiity of the Company, We further state that dur repaming 5 Dased on the facts
up to the dabe of the audit report and we neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all
hahges falling due within 3 period of one year from the Balarce sheet date, will et discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)Ma) According to the nfgrmation and explanabion gvan £ ws, o respact of gbhar than ongoing
R el ere are oo unsperel C5R aipmonl fo: Lhe pear reguriog o Udisfed Lo o Fonod specificd i
Schedule VI 10 the Campanigs 248 or speoal account o Compliance with the prowson of sub-sechon
(6] of section L35 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause [xx) of the Order is ngt
applicable for the year.
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(exdb) In respect of ongomg projects, the Company has ransferred ungpent Corporate Sooal
Respanzibnl by {C5R) amourt, to a Speoal zccount before the date of this report and within a peraig
of 30 days from the end of the finangal year in comphande with the provision of soooon 13506] of
Lhz Aeg.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
{Firm= Registration No. 117 366W AN - 10040 13}

o Rl =

Krizhrta Prakash E

[ Part ner

[Membershp Ma, 216015)
(UDN: 22HEQ1SARIFPD G IRY

Plzo: Coimbabore
Dabe: May 13, 2022
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Brahmani River Peflets Limited
Mgtes {0 tke financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
1. Geaeralinformation

Brahmani River Pallets Limited {“the Company”| is a Company incarparaced and darmiciled a0 Indiz,
walhy 05 registared office snuated in Bhubaneswar, Gdisha. The Company has two plants located in
Cdisha. The Company has commenced its commerial praduction of won ore pelleds on July 01,
2013 and is one of the leading manufacturers of iron ore pelfets in India.

The financigl stotements of Brabmani River Pellers Levabed 35 ar March 31, 2022 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Cirectors on May 13, 2022

2. Signiflcant accounting policies
2.1 Statermnent of compllance and basis of preparation

In accordance with the aotficatoon wsuad by the Ministry of Corporate Affars, the Company
is requircd to prepare its financial statements wnder the Ingdian Accountng 3tandards ¢Ind
A57] prescribed under Section 1331 of the Companies Act, 2012 read with rode 3 of the
Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Fules 2015, as amended. Accordingly, the
Cormpang s prepared these Fingnogl $atements which comprise the Balance Sheel ac at
March 31, 2022, the 5tatement of Profit and Loss, {intludimg ather Comprehenswe Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement far the year ended March 31,
2022 and srigrafecamn zccounting pollie; and other explanatory information (fogethar herein
after rederred ba 35 “Finaneial 3tatements” ).

The finangial statemeents have been prepared on beskoncal cost bagis, except for the
following assets and abilities:

» Mret defined benelit |asset) S liability which are measwred ot ner af far value of plam
assets less present value of defined benefit obligation

» Cortain hinancial assets and habilities measured at fair value [refer accounting pobicy
regardimg fimangial snttrgrments|.

Comparative Fingngial infoermation has been regrowped, wherewer negescary, ta
correspond 3 the tigures of the current year.

2.2 surmmgary of signiflcant accounting pollcles
a. Cument vt Morooarrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curreny non-
corrent clasafication. An agset s treared as current when it a2

Expectad 1o be rexised orintended to b2 s0ld or consemed in normal operating cycle
» Held primanly far the purpose of trading
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s [ypected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pengd, or
e Cashoor cosh cquialent unbess eesteicued from being exthanged or wsed to ssttle g
liability far at least twelve manths aftar the reparting period

Al ather assels are classified as non-current.
A labihby 13 cuerenr when:

It iz expected ro be settled sn normal operating oyclte

Itis held primarily for the purpose of Iragding

Itis due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting pesod, or

Thare is na unconditional right ta deter the settlemeant of the liability far at least
twelve monrhs after the reporting pericd

The Cormpany ¢lassifies all other liabilities as non-current. Coeferred fas asiets and
lighilities are clascified as nom-current assets and liahilities.

Tha operating cycle is the time between the afguisition of assets for processing and their
realizaton n gash and Cash equevalents. The Company has wdenbifeed fwalve atonths a3 0s
operating eyvcle,

b, Use ol astintates

The preparalion of the financial statements an conformity with Ind AS requires
Management to make judgment, ectinates and assurptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expentes, yisets and leabaliies, and the agcompanying disclozures,
and disclosures relading fo canbingent liabilitirs Examples of sorh psbimabes includye
impairment of financial assets, future obligations under emplovee retirement benafit
plans, income taxes, lease clacsification, poct- sales customer suppodt, recognition of
deferred 13x assets: avadlabildy of future tarable probt agamer which rax lpsses Carcied
forward can be used and the useful lives of propenty, plant and equigment, inyesbment
property and intangibfe asseis.

dccounting estimates could change from period o penod. Actgal resulis could differ
from those estimanes. Appropridte changes im cslimates are made 25 L Management
becomes aware of changes s circumslances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
astimates are reflected o the inanogl statements in the penod in which changes are
nvaeke aod, if material, their effects are disclosed inthe notes to the financial statements,

t. Revenue recognithon

Ravenue 5 recggresed when control of the goods or senvices are transferred 1o the
cuskbamer al an amownt Lthat reflects the consideration to which the Company espects to
ke entitled in exchange lor those goods or semvices, regardless of when the payment ic
being made. Revenue s measured o the laie value of the consideralion reoeived or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. The Company s
the primcipal in all of itc revenue arrangements since it the primacy obbger i all fhe

= -:-::ﬂu:“jl.
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revenue arangorments a3 it had pgacmg Bttede aed g alio repoged b invontory ond
eredit resks,

Howewer, Goods and Seraces tax {G3T) e gl receieed by the Company an irs own
arcount. Rather, it is tax collected on walue added to the commodity by the weller on
behalt of the govarnment. Accordingly, in g exclyded From revanue.

e of

Revenue from sale of goods is recogmised when control of the goods i transferred Lo Lthe
Customer;. Bevenwe from the sale of goods v measered 3t the far valug of the
consideratoon receieed or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade decownts and
volume rebates.

Interest lnconic

For all fingngial Fssets eneddured al amortised cost, interest income i recorded vsing the
vHective interest rate [EIR]. EIR. is Lthe rate that ewactly discounts Lthe estimated future
receipts owar the expected hfe of the fimancial ascets or 3 shomter penod, where
appropnate, 10 the gross carying amound of the finsneal suiet. When caleulating the
cflectnve interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractoal tarme of the financial instroment (for example, prepayment, exfension,
c£all and similar apbont) bul dges nar conseder the expected credit Iosses.

Davidends

Revenue it recogmsed when the Company's right B0 receive the payment is established,
which is generslly when shareholders approve the dividend.

d. Property, Plant & Equipment

Freehold kand is carnied at histosecal oct. Freghold land w npt depreciated. &l other
ilemis of property, plant and cquipment are staled 2t historical cost boss deprociation and
impairmial, Histoncal cost inclodes espenditure that s directly attribotable to the
acquisition of the ltems.

Subsequent cosrs are mclrded i the seset's cormping amgunt o recogrised a5 3 separate
as5¢t, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benelits associated
with the dterm will flow (o the Company aond the cost of the sem can b2 measpred
relably. The carryingd amount of any component accounted for as a separate assel is
derecognised when replaced. all ather repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss duning the reporting period in which they are ingurred

an e of properly, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised, =
derecognited vpon disposal or when no future ecgnomic benefirs are expected fegmm os
use or disposal. Ay gain or bass arising o0 derecdgnition of the asset [caleulated as the
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diffarence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying omount of the asset] s
included in the income staiement when the zuzet is derecogrsed.

The resedual values, wseful Ines god metheds of depreciation of property, plant and
equipmenl are revicwed at each linancial year end and adjusted prospectively,
appropnate.

Spares having useful [fe of more than one yiear and having volwe of B3 0010 Crore or
mare in each case, are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for
use,

Ceprecwiion on Capital Spares is provided over the wseful fife of the spare or remaming
useful bfe of the mother asset whichever is lower.

Depreciaticn cormmences when the assets are ready for ther infended use. Depreciable
amaunt For assels is the cost of an azset, or other amgunt sobstituted for cost, less s
estimated residual valwe Depracialion ic calculated om 3 strasght-lne basis over Lhe
esrimargd useful bves of the Jssets a5 follows:

Fraperty, plant and ' Wsetul live s (Years)

ChHUipmeEnt ; d
| Office Building ' B :
i Factory Building I 30 !
T Flant & #achinery [CPF] 1 25 1
| Comnpters B Arcessorics I 3

Furiture & Fixlures I 10

Electnical Installatrons I 10

Air Condrigners 1%

DFfice Equipmients i 5

hgtor vehigles I B

Plat & Machineey (Chers) | 13

Tower Ling | 75

Capltal Waork<in-Progress (OWIP)

Capital Work-in-progress ingludes cost of asters at site, Lonstruchipn expendidyre and
other expendmure made for gequisition of capitdl sesets, I bhe case of eonsulloncy
payments for arection and commissioning the said CWIP is stated excluding of sarvice tax
and cecs and GLT bor which tax credd i allowed under applicabbe indirech 1ax laws.
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Treatrn et of expeaditure Juring construction period

Expanditure durng construction period nel of revenue are included under eopendure
during Constractoon less any recognised impairment less, wikich s shown as Capital work-
in-progress, and the same is altocated to the appropriate capitzl head of accounts gn the
commssioning of the project. Expenditure inttudes professipnal fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrawing st ¢ apitalized in accordance with the Company's aLounting palicy.

e. Intangible Asseks
Intzngible assets are stated at cost of zoquisition 1ess accumulated arortization.

Intangidle assets acquited separately are measuwred ono initial recogaifian At Cost.
Following imtial recognition, intangbls assels are carmed af cost lesd gocumulsted
amartisation and zccumulated impairmend losses, if any.

Intangrhle assets with finte bves are amortsed ower the useful coongmg fife and
assessed Tor irpainment wike fever there s an indicatbon that the intangible a5t may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amenfisatgn method for an intangible asset
with a hnite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes
ih the eapacred wseful fe or the expectad pattern of conswrmption of future ecanomic
benefits embodicd in the asset are considered Lo modify the amortisation petadd or
mrthgd, a5 apprapriate, and are eated 35 changes in accounting estimates, The
amartisation expense on intangible assels with fimte lives is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss unless such expenditure Forms par of catrying valug of anather asset.

Anwntangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no lubure ecanarmg bengfils are
expected from gse of disposal. Gaing or logses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measvred as the difference between 1he net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the ascet, are recognised in profit of loss when the assetis derecogneed.

amortisation s caloulated an o strarght-hing basic over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Lseful lives l
| [¥ears) '
[ Saftware™ &

Iintangible assets

P— M—

f.  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company 3s5es, a6 each reporting date, whelher there is an indicatien Hat an Jssek
may be impaired. If any indicalion ¢xists, or whah anaual impairmeant tecting for an asset
is required, the Company estimates the assel's recoverdble amgunt. An asset’s
recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asaet’s or cash-generating vnit's (CGU) Tair vabue
less costs of disposal and its value in use Recoverable amount iz determined for an
ingdividual asset, unless the aszet does not generate cash inflows That are largely
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independant of thooe from other sssets or groups of assets. When the Larnyang amount
of an astet or CGU axcepds its racoverable amount, the asset is conswdered impared and
o5 weritben down Lo its recowierd ble amoung.

Impairment losses arc racognised in the statement of profit and a5,

g- Iaventory

Raw materials, Stores and spares are valued at lower of Cost and [ value, computed an
weighted average basis. Cost of raw malerials comprises cost of purchases which are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts and other costs in bringing the raw
materials, slores and spares to their present location and condition. Serap is valued at
net reahzable value, whigh iz [ess than coof. Met realisable valoe repracents the estimated
selling price for inventaries less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the cale

wark in progress and hrished gosds is valved 3t lower of cost prce or ngl realizable
value. Cost of work-in-progress and hinished goods comprises direct materials, direct
labour angd an approprnate properten of vanable and lised overhead eekpenditure, the
Tabter bring allocated on the Basis of normal operating capacity.

h, Leases

Leases are classitied as flnance leases whenewver he terme of the [ease fransfer
subsrantially all fhe ritks and rewards of ownership 1o the lesses. Al gther leases are
classified as aperating leases.

The Company as a lessee

Right-of-use assats;

The Company recognses right-of-use assels at the commencement date of the [ease [ie,
the date [he ynderlying ascset s avallable for se]. Right-of-uze aczels are measured at
cast, lrss any aecumulated deprecistion and impairment Iosses, and adjusied for gy
remeasuremeant of lease liabilities. The cast of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease habitees recogresed, imtoal dirgct ¢osts inguered, and lgase payments made at or
before the commencement date tess any lease incenlives receqved, Unless the Company
iz reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leacsed asset at the end of the lease term,
the recogmsed nght-of-use 35sets are depreciated on a srraight-hne basiz over the shorter
of its eclimaled uselul life and the lease lerm. Ripht-of-use assets are subject to
lnagedir Mg ng pest.

Legse hiotilities:

AL Lthe pomrnengemenl date of the legse, the Compaty recopmses lease Labiltes
measurad al the present value of lease payments 1o be made over the [ease term, The
lease payments include fixed payments [including in-substance fixed payments] less any
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lease ncenlives recaivable, variable lease payments thgl depend on an index or a rate,
aod anbgun ks expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The vanable leawe payments Hal da not depend on an ndex or a rate are recognised acs
expense in the penod an which Lthe event or condition that riggers the payment ofours.
In galiulating (the présent value of lease paymenrs, the Company uses the noremeotal
borrowing rate at the tease commencement date if 1the interesr eale mplicit in the lease i
nnt ¢earhly determinahle.

Shart-termt leases ond legces of low-value gosets:

The Company apphes the shom-lerm tease recognition exemption to its short-term [eases
[i.e., those leases that have & fease berm of 12 mgnths or bess frgm the commencement
date and da not conlain a purchase option]. It also applies the lease of [aw-value assets
recegnition cxemption W leases thal ore consdered of low walue fie., below Rz
S.00.000). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of [ow-value assers are
recpgnised a5 sapenze an a skraight -ling basis ower the [ease tanm.

Lignificont judgement in determmining the fease term of confracts with resewal oplions:
The Company derermnes the leasg 1erm as the non-cancellable term of the [ease,
rogether with oy periods covergd by an gption (0 getend the leaca if it i reasonably
cerlain 1o be exercised, or any periods tovered by aa oplion to termundte rhe lease, ifit iz
reasonatly certain not to be exarcised.

l.  Frovislons, contingent [1ahilitles and contingent assetks

Provisians are recopnized when the Company has a present [(legalfconstruclivet
obligation a5 a result oF 4 past event, for which it is probable rhat cash out flow may be
required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatcon. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in 1he statement of profit and loss.

If the effact of the time walue of mongy s material, provisions are discounted using @
turrent prg-lay rale thay reflects, when approprigte, the ngks specibic to the hability.
When discounting is usad, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time s
recognised 3s 3 inange cost.

A cantingent liability is 3 possible obligation that arses from pasr svenls whose gxistence
will be confirmed by the accurrence or non-oocurrence of one or more uncertain future
evants beyond the control of the company or a present obligalion thal is not recognised
Because it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to cettle the
ohligation. A& contingenl liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there it 2
abdity that cannot be recognised becausze o Cannot be measured reliably. The company
does nal recognise a contingent lability but distleses its existence in the financial
ctatements.

Canlimgent assels are not recognsed bul disclazed o the fingnoal staremegnts when am
inflow of economic benefit is probable.




@ BBPL

L Retlremedt and Other Employees bonefits

Short Term emplovee benefits

All short-term employes benefits such a5 salanies, incentwes, special awards, medical
beacfits which are espected 1o be settled wiolhy with 12 months after the end of the
penad in which the employee rendars the related services which entitles him b3 avail
such henefits and ngn-goeumulabing compentated absences [such as sick leawe) are
recognized on an undiscounted basis and charged to the prafit and 1355 account,

Defined Contribuwtion Flan

Conteibubions w the pravident fund, which s 3 defined conbnibution plan, made to the
Regional Provident Fund Commussiones are charged Lo the profit amd 1055 a0counl on an
accrual basis.

Defined Benafif Pipn

Ermployes gratuily is defined bepefit plan far gualifying employges. The gratuily plan
provides 3 lump-sum payment to vested employees at retiremend, death, ifcapacilsligm
of termination from emplayrent, of an amownt based on employee's salary and tenure
of employment. Liabilities with regard (o the gratumy plan arg deterrned at each
Balance Sheet Date by acluarnial valuation using projected onil ¢redit method.

Leove salary cosk, which is a defincd benefit, iz provided for in respect of the pan-availed
balance of leave Lo Lhe credit of 1he emplovees as at the year-end. The same is provided
on rhe Basis of actuwanal valugtcon waing the projected unir credt method and . debited
o the statement of profitand boss on an acerual basis,

Actuarial gains and losses on defined retirement benefits {Gratwity] arising during the
year are racognized im other comprehencive income.

Liabdities recognised i respect of short-term employvee benshits are measored at the
undintaunted amount of the benefits espected to be paid in cxchange for the related
SeryiCe.

k. Taxatlon
Currant taxes

Current incgme 13w 3ssets dnd habilitees are meaiured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rabes and tax laws vsed (o
compute the anmount are those that are enacted or substantivaly enacted, at the
reparbing dabe,

Courrent income Llax relating to tems recognised outside profit or 955 i recognised
qutside profic or loss i comelation bo the pnderlying transaction eitherin OC] or directhy
in eguity. Managemenl penigdically evaluates positions raken o the tax returns with
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respect o sitvations in which applicable tax rcgulatsons are subgedl to nberpretarion and
£slablithe s provesians whene appropnats.

Ceferrad taxes

Deferred tax 15 recogrised on temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the conespandimg (3: bases veed in
the computatiom of 1axable profit.

Peferved rax 2ssets are regognised for all deductible remporary ditferances, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tas losses Deferred bae 35sels are
recogmised to the extand thal of is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deduenile femporgry differences, and the arry foraard of wnused tax credits
and unused tax bosses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
teduced to the axteat that it is no longer probable rhat sufficenl taxable profit will be
available 1o allew all or part of the deforred baw asset W be wribsed. Unrecogniced
defarrad tax assets are re-ascesced at each reporting date and are recopmised bo the
extent that it has become probable that ture taxable proits will allow the defarred tax
assel b be recovered,

Deferred tax dssots and Ipbidngs are medsured a1 the x rabes that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is reolised or the liability is setuled, based on toe rates
[and tax |aws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date.

Ceferred 13« relabing o items cecogmsed gurside profit or loss is recognised outside
profiv ar loss [either i gther comprehensive income o m eguity]. Celerred fax items are
recognised in correlation to the underfying transaction either im OC1or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred 1as habilities are ofiset if a legally enforceable night
exsns 1o ser off current tav astets agrnst current tav liabilties and the deferred taxes
relate to the same 1axable entity and the same taxation authogity.

1. Foreign cumencies

The Company's Fnanorgl sgatemiealt are presenied in IR, whigch s also the Compamy’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Trani3ctoons o foregn oufrencies are innally recorded by the Company at itz functional
currency spof rake at the date the transaction first quabfies for recagnition,

Exchange diMerences arising on settlement or festatement of transactions, are
recognized a5 Income of expense in bhe wvedrin which they arige.




@ BRPL

Manetary assets and babelities denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the
fenchional currency spot rabes af exchange 2t the reporling dale.

Mon-monetary iems that are measured in terms of histoncal casrm o forggn currendy
arc tramclated using the exchange rates at the datec of the initial transaclions.

m. Fairvalye measurement

The Company measures finanoal instruments such a5 muteal fund investment ar Fair
value af each balance chest date

Farr valug 15 the price that would be recewed 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligy
wr gn orderhy transaction bebween markel participants at the medsorement dabe. The Fair
value measurement 1s based an the presumption that Lhe trancaction 1o sell the assel of
Iransfer the liabality takes placa ewher:

» |nthe princspal market for the acset or liability
o

#  |nthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principzl gr the most edvantageous markel most be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an azset or a babily 15 measured waing the assumptigns that market
particepants would wie when pricing the asset or lability, assuming thal market
particapanls ael in bhe if economic bestinteqest.

A fair walue measurement of a non-financial asszet takes into accounl @ market
participant's ability t> generate economic benefits by weing the ascet in its highest and
bect use or by selling it to another market participant that would wse the accet in ils
highest and Gest use.

The Company wses valuation wechniques that are appropniale in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
ralevant observable inguts and mimmizng the use of unobservable nputs.

ANl 3ssets and liabilities Tor which fair vakue is messored or diselosed in the Tinaneial
stalements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowast level input that is significaat to the [3ir walue measurement a3 3 whole:

=  lewvel 1 — CGuoled |umadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assels or
lizhilities

+  Level 2 — VYaloation techmguees for whooh the lpwest lewel input tha is sigmficany gy
the far value medsureongnt s directly o indirectly abservable

+  Level 3 — Valuarion techmques for which rhe lowest level input thar i significant ro
the fair waluge measurement i unsbsenvable
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n. Ffirancial instruments

A financial instroment is any contract that gives rice to a hnancial asset of one entity and
ahinangapl legbaliey or equiky instrumenl of anorhar enity.

Financedl 3550rs and fvancial habiltes are inteally measured at fair value. Transaclian
tosts that are dwrectly attributable to the acquistion or issue of Tinancial J55ets and
Fimangial balaldees (orhar than hnangial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through Statement of Profit end Lossh are added o or deducted from the Far value of
the finanoizl assets or financiak habilities, asz appropriate. on initial recognition,
Tromgoactean coshs directly atteibotable w the aequisition of fimangial assets ar financial
liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are recognised immedeately im Statement
of Profit and Loss.

i) Einancial assels

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initialy at fair vafue plus, in the case of financisl
acsets not recorded at far value through profit or loss, trancackion costs that are
attnibwrtable tathe gogquisinion of the financal asset.

Subsequent mEafurement

For purpases of subsequent measurement Ninaneial assets are chissified o two broad
categoses:

¢ Financial ausets ar Fyir valite
# Financial assets at amortised cost

Where aczel:z are measyred at fair value, gaing and losses are eithers recognized
enfirgly it Lhe statemeat of proft aed loss {ie. Fair walue throwgh profit or lossh or
reeonised in other comprehensive income e fair value through other
comprehensive income).

4 hnancial asset that mests the followeng tweo condifipns i measured at amortised
cost {ret of any write down For impairment) vnless the asset is designared ar fair
value Lthrough profit or |oss under the fair value option

*  Business madel wst: The objective of the Company's business madel is w haold
the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows [rather than to sell the
INSErU et price o it condralrual maturity €0 realise s far valug changes).

s {ash Mow characteristics test The contfacrual terms of the financial asset give
rise an specified dates to cash llows that are solely payments of principal and
interest an the principal aAmownt owtslanding.

Al pther fingncial agset is meadured at Bar value through prafit or logs.
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Derecognition

A Finanoial azset {or, whare apphcable, a part of a financial assel of part of 2 grovp of
sy Fingnecial Jssets) e prmanly deracopnised {Le. removed from the Company’s
statemment of financial position when the fight a0 receive Cash flows frgm [he asset i
transferred ar eapred.

Irnpairment of nancial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on capected credit bosses {ECL] model 1o
the financial assets measured al amortised cost.

Expected cradit fosses are measured throvgh a loss allowance at an amount equal to
thie 1F-mgnih expected credit bosses feapected credit losses thay result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 manths after
the reporing date].

The Company follows Simplified approdch” for recogmtoon of smparment loss
allpwance on trade receivables.

LUnder the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in oredit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
re porking dare, fight frgen i it regogmbpn

Tha Carmpany uies 3 provisian matric b dete rming iempairment 1055 allowance on the
portfolic of trade receivables. The provision mabrix s based on dits histoncally
observed default rales aver the expectad lile of the trade receivable and is adjusied
for forward looking estimales. At every reparting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the foredrd-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognmgn of impdirment (055 on other financial assers and sk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant incredse in bhe crehr
risk since initial recognition. If credit rsk has not increased sgnificantly, 12-month
ECL iz used to prowide for impairment loss. Hewsavar, if credit rick hac increased
significangly, lifetieme ECL 45 wsed, I, in 3 subseguent period, credic qualiey of the
imstrumenl improves such that there ic no longer a significant increase in credil rish
cince imitial recognition, then the Company reverds to recognising impairment lass
Mlowance based g 12-manth ECL,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
bnancral instruments gn the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
ehyeorive of Taciltating an anabesis that 15 desgned 1o enable sighihcant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recopnition and messurement

All Tinancidl lighilities are recognised initially 31 Fair valye and, incthe case of 1oans Jnd
borrowings, net of diracthy att sbutable transaction casts.
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The Company’s financial [abddees inclede trade and other payables and lpans and
horrawings

aubsegient measurément

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ¢lassification, a5 desonbed
b

gans and Borrowings

After wtial recagnition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amartised cost using the EMecthve Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and
[sses are pecadnised im profit or [oss when the Gabilities are derecognised as well a5
throuvgh Lhe EIR amortization process.

Amorticed cost is calcwfated by taking into account any discount or premium on
Acguistegn dnd fees oe Casks thar are anontegral part of the BIR. The EIR amortisation
is inciuded a5 fingree costs in the statement of profit and (G5

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligzation vnder the lwabikity i
diccharged or cancelled or expires. When an excling linancial liakility is replzced by
angrher from the same lender on substantially dfierent terms, or rhe tarms of an
exigting ability are substanteally madified, such an exchange o modficaton s
treated a5 the derecopnition of the original lability and the recognition of 3 few
liability. The difference in the respeclive carming amounts is recognised in the
statement of prafit and lozz.

ii] ffsetting of financial instrurme nifg

Financedl assets and Ningncial babilities are offset ond 1he net amount 15 reported in
the balance sheet o there it 3 currently enforceable begal right o offset the
recognized amounls and there iz an intenlicn ta seltle an a net basis, o realise the
assels and settle the hababhigs soimulianegusly.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash Nows, cash and cash equivalents cansist of cash
al banks and on hand and short-term depasits with an orginal maturity of three months
or lezs, which are subject o an insigalficang sk of changes imvalue

p- Borawlng cosk

Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition or construction of a qualifing asset
[met of inconne earned on ternporary deployenent gf fundc] are capitalized az a part of the
355005 on commissioning of the project. & qualifying assel is onge that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready forintended use.
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q. Segment Reporting

Cperating segmeanis arg reported an 3 maneer Cantistant with the internal reporting
proveded 1o the Chiel sperating decsion maker. The Mapaging Director of the Company
has beenidenbfied as being the chief operating decision maker.

h. Cash fiow Statement

Cash MNows are reported using the iodireer method, wherehy profit for the perncd s
adjusted for the effecis of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past ar felure aperating £ash receipt or payments and item of mcpme ar expense
assolrabed wirh investing or financing cashllows. The cash Mow from aperating, investing
and fingning actwvities of the Company are segregated.

1. Eamings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 computed by daadmg the proft f [loss] afer toa by The
welghted averdge number of equity shares autstanding during the vear, Ineame refating to
the dilutive pétential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weghred average number of
aguity shares which could hawe been dined on the conversion of all delubve potential
gquiry shares,

I Rounding off amounts

All amgunts disclosed in Ehe financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the
nedrest crore and decimals thereof as per the reguirements of Schedule [, unlass
nlhenyise slated.

k. Operating cycle

Bazed on the nalure of produces § acbwibies of Fhe Company and the normal Time be baeean
acquisition of a5sets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
derermined ils operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classilication of its assets
and liabilities as corrent and non-current.

2.1 Significant apcguniing judgements, estimates and assumptlons

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with Ind AS regquires
managzment tx make judgements, estimates and assurmptions that affect the reporred
amounts of revenwes, expenses, 25215 and liabilities and the accompanying distlosures, and
the desclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumgptions and estimates
could result in cutcomes that raquire a matenal adyjustment 1o the carnyng amount of dsers or
liabilities affected in futyre penods. The estimates and assaciated assumptions are based on
historizal eaperience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable wnder the
circumstances axcling when the finangal starernents ware prepared. The estimates and
underlying assumptlons are revicwsd on an engoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is
reCogrused in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future vear affected.

T

)

~
-
w
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a. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources oF esbimatmn al the
reportmg date, which may fause matenal adjustment to the carrping amaounts of a55ets
and liabilities within the neak finapesg | wegr, arg desonbed below. The Company based itc
assumpbions and estsmates on paramelers available when the fimangal statemenis were:
preparad. Evsting arcumstancas and Jssumptions abowt future developments, bowever,
nay change due ta market changes or circurnslanoes arsg hal are beyond the coatrol
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they gcur

b, Deflned bepeflt plans

The cost and present obligation of Gefined benefit gratuiy plan and compensated
abcences are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuardl waludton nmvolves
making various assurmptigns that may differ from actwzl Jevelopments in the fulure
These mglude the determmation of the decguat rate; future salary increacec and
mortality rates. Due 1o complerities involved in the valeation and ifs long-term nalure, »
defmed benelt oblgation iz highly sensitive to chanpes in these assumptions Al
AR plgnt are asipmed a1 each reporting date. Kefer Wole 2.2 [jt

e Tazes

Deferred tax, subject to the considesation of prudence, & recognised on temporany
difference: between the faxable income and atesumting income rhat onginate in one
penod and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent pericds. Deferrod raxs
asscts arc rofognised to the eatent that there iz reasonable cortainty that coFicient
future tax ingam e will be avaliable against which such deferred tax ascets can be realized.

2.4 Recent accounting pronslnsements

On Mareh 23, 2022, the Minetry of Corporate Afairs [MCA) ssued certan amendments and
annual improvements to Ind AS. These amendments are applicable for Jccounning pengds
begwnning on of after April 1, 202 2

v Ind A% 103 - Business Combinatipng — Reference to congeptual framework added.

+ Ind A% 16 — Property, Plant aod Equiprment — Accounting For proceeds before an ascet’s intended
[T TN

= Ind AS 37 = Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels — Ascessing if the contract is
QM TR

o Ar gt rnpeoagernent s too nd &% — mpraverments added in ind a5 101 (First lime adaption of [nd
AS5], Ind A5 109 {Financial Instruments), Ind A5 116 [Leasest and Ind AS 41 [Agniculbure|,

The Company will gvaluate the impact of the above, where appliczble, on the financial statements
and gwe imipdct of Lher Same in bhe relevant period.

IL.-{'\I"'
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Brahman| River Fellets Lmlted
Motes to the financial staterments lor the year ended March 31, 2022
(A rengungs in ® crare, enlgss Sthorwise siotod)

Mote 4 - Right-of-use assets

Fartbculars Land Total

fGroess carrylng value

Al xt April 01, 2020 1l.4& 3144
Addebagns

Dispozal - -
A5 3t March 31, 2021 31.46 S
Additinng 246 Z a9
Dnsposal Iy 2.23
A5 3t March 31, 2022 31.649 31.69

Accurnplated depreciation

As at April 01, 2020 0.40 .40
Depreciation charge for the vear 041 41
Disposals -
As 2t March 31, 2021 o.81 3.81
Depreciation charge for the year {.38 0.8
[nsposals .07 Qaa?
As 2t March 31, 2022 113 113
Carrying value
Ac at March 31, 2032 3056 3056
As at March 31, 2021 A0.65 B
Leases:

The Company has entered into arrangaements for lease of lznd, ofice and guest house premises and
certain Facilities. Refer Mote 2.2(h} for the accountsng policies. Lease hold land are subject to a first
carge to secuse all the Company™s borrowings as gieen in Bote-15.

Aueniguak recognlsed In stabem ent of prokit and loss

Farticulars For the year eaded  Eot the year ended
Bareh 20, 2022 March 21, 2031
Depreciatlon on fAght-af-use asters 0.39 030

Short term leqate paymenns (Reder nates Beldw) .45 3.0H




Erahmanl River Fellets Limited
Motes ko the flmancial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2022
fall emountz in € Crore, unless atheresse sfaled)

biote 5 - Sther intanglble assets

Particulars Softwares Takal

Gross canrylng amount

A5 at ppril 0L, 2020 G54 0.5%

Additiang 0.0 0.0%

Dizgrnsals - -

As at March 31, 2021 D.ER .68

Additiong

Disposal: . .

As At March 31, 2032 .68 .58
Accwmulated amortlzation

As at Apnl 0L, 2020 0,35 .35

Charge for the year 0.08 0.0B

Disposals - .

As at March 31, 2021 0,43 .43

Charge for the year 0.06 0.08

Disgnsals -

A3 xt March 31, 2022 .49 0,43
Het Book Yalue

A= at March 31, 2022 (.19 419

As =t March 31, 2021 .25 0.25%

Moate B - Cher finangial agsets - nom current

Az at s at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

{aranyised cost}
Unsecured, considered gaod

Security deposing 20.05 20404

Bark deposits with more than 12 months onginal 10.13 110

maturity”

Interest zrcrued on deposits 0.2 .21
Taotal other flnancial assets - mon current J0.a4 21,35

" Fiadged wath banks towards margin meney T8, 7 crores (31 Warch, 2021 % 1.05 crores)
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Brahrmaal River Pellets Lirmited
Maokes to phe linancial statements for the year ended Barch 31, 2022
Jantameopnts vk # Crove, watess prhgvwage sratad)

Moke 17 - Bank balanees ather than ¢a5h and cash equlvalents
e apbAarch 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Earmriarked balarees with barks 148
Fixed deposits® 26.43 10.43
Total bank Balanges ather than ¢ash aad cash equivalents 2752 043

* Fedped wall: Bants fatlers towards margin moaney % 555 crorar (31 March, 2021 % 1043 crores)

Make T3 - Qther current flaancial as5ets

Unsecured, considered goad As At harch 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2031
Interest accrued on deposits 1.66 1.14
Security deposits 017 0.57

Total gther current linanelal assets 1.83 1.71

Mape 14 - Cusrenl B Josets {nek)

Ag 3t Warch 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Aduwange et Tax 1r.74 E R
Legs! Prowisign fof ingarme Tha [10.53) [5.1dp
Total current tax assets [net) 1.26 0,53

Mota 15 - Other current assels

Az at March 31, 7022 Az atBarch 31, 2021

a, Bafancres with govermment authorities
Considered good « Unsecwred

Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 16.94 3568
b. CHhers
Considered good - Unsecured
Advande to suppliers §7.949 41.67
Securiby deposils g8 146
Propiymierity 097 103

Total ather cyrrent assets 143 . B
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@ BRPL

Brabirmani River Pellets Umited
MHotes ta the fliranclal statements for the year ended Masch 31, 2022
FAY ameurts in ¥ Crore, unlars afberwize statedr

Mote 21 - Cther current Rnanclal lahbilides

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Farable on purchase of property, plant ang eguipmen £5.08 24.28
Tatal ather currenl fing ngial liahildies 25 .08 2226

Fayanle an purchaze of progorty, glant and eguipment meiodes amaunt payable to erstwhile related party {up
o February 23 2013 Pe orgabe indasbne & hietuked S Stamcore SE0 PTE Lid.

Bate 13 - Curent provisions

LS 1 As at
Rareh 231, 200F March 31, 2001
Srownsion for grarwty (Refer npte 1d) 0.311 007
Frowsion for compansated absencas 0.3 .15
Totzl current term provisicons 061 5,22
Bote i3 - {rther current abilibes
Ag at A5 at
harch 31, 2022 March 1, 2021
Other current iab: ities EEFRUE 331.2¢2
SEATUTONy rermlTlances 1.31 (1
Total ather cerrent HakliHies 34474 333040

Other current liabilities scludes amount received from erstwhile related party (up to February 23, 18
Koorgate industries limited [ Stemcore SEA PTE Ltd.

Pursuamt ko aszignment agreement dated December 13, 01T, ather current liabilivies is aszipred o
Sharehoiders namely 158 Technoa Progects #Sanagermeat Limited, Thovem Pellets Private Limited and Mitson
sreels Privata Limited in their respective snarehaoldiag ratio Az per azsignment agreemeant, assgnment will be
effective from the date of R3| appraval. Shareholders have enterad snta Shareholders Debt agreement dated
Cecember 15, 2017, which provides for comversion of the Offchore debt to equity on ABN agproval, Singe Lhe
RE| approval is in process, the ability has not been assigned 1o respective sharehelders as on date




Erahmani River Felets Limited

Motes ba the Anzncial statements for the year onded March 311, 3032

(A grmprnrs i $ Crore, gatess orierese stateat

Mate 26 - Aeverhe from operaticad

Froam ron® fo b with rusfomers Ser goncls
(1 %' e of progicts
[n] Qther operating reverue;
Gorag talas
Total revenue from operations

For the year ended Forthe year ended
Ffarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

3,007.74 .28 a4

121 Q.34

3,71b.94 2.181.78

The Coampary helisws (har 1he abiowe it a7 the disagareganos 1hat deqets o INE nature, ameunt, bning zrd
uACe L nky 0f rewonges and st Floaes are afbsgres. Revense disaggregauon 3t per gedgrapny fas beea inclezed n

segment iafarmation {Refer note 37},

Mote 25 - Other lacame

I=teresr incar: e feorm franog’ atsers measu-ed at amort.ced cost
Bank cepars
MIBT i TErELT iNEdiTe

Gair con Farengn s ha e ge Tl coariaa (nee|

Prawisiast fliabilit o: ma loniger regquiied wrler badi

Total ather income

Moia 26 - Cost of matenals consumad

Inyeniory 35 the begnning of the year
Add: Purchases

Last: Inventony 2t bine e of 1h e yazi
Tatal cost of materials eansumed

HMake 27 - Changes la Inventares of flnlched peads and work-In-
[T LY

Invenzarigs at the end of the year
Finished goods
WDrE-in-grogrese

imrentories akthe beginning of the year
Fimigrad grmpts
Waork-ireprogress
Net change in inventories of finished goods and sarksneprogress

Foo the year ended Fge the year eonded
March 31, X0k Margh 31, 2011

180 .14

1.33 14K

- 175

1116 203

15.3% 1351

For the vear ended Farthe year gnded
March 31, 2012 biarch 3, X021

165 16 21312

2,114.5 1.431.71

T, 380,07 1,634.83

205 53 165 15

1,174,555 1, 48557

Far the year ended
Barch 31, 2022

For the year ended
Rfarch 32, 221

51.44 35,30
1.4 11.4%
33.20 a5 4
1124 7 73

{27.68) E.25
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Bratimani River Pelletd Limiied
Mares v the linanciel statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

JAT amoirs o X Crara, peless glhergage statan)
Hane 37 - Segrmedt i piarrmstion
Basis for sepmentabion

The Coenpary's Baasicess cormpnse of sale of one pre:lucl aaly e, ron oce pellets, As defined omoind 85 108, the cin el
cpat g desiesn naker [CO0M], @valuzies the Conmeg arny 't pedormance, allocate resourcs based on the anplyss £fLhe
wanods perfarrnanee indicara- of e Sempany as a ang'e wnit, Therefore, there is nz reporiable sepment lor the Company
3z perihe rega rerens of ed A% 108 “Gperating degments”

Cecgraphical Indasmatian
Tha geographical araat tore g nses 4 OFeLnC 4385 w0 custorr ars [acated o india 2nd Jhe guerseas sales jo fustnmr ecs located
outuide India,

Farticulars For the year endcd March 31, H022 For the year enided Mharch 31, 2021
Dorestic  Owerseas LHE] Domestic  dwerieas Total

Aavenue Frowm sa'e of prodas 2993 8y .12 308909 241l 3556 ZI.PRZz.7A

B furrar b Segnient JLiers 1,107.£8 - 110748  1,1103% . 1,110,395

{=epreserts taszl norcprrany gscets)

informabion abeul I'I'Iijﬂl' curttarmer:

Faverpe of £ 2 531 BE crore 5 deryed irom bewo cussdmers dunag bine yeas ended SMasck 310 12 [March 51, 321 B
2.15.6]1 rrare]. Twa Cusromers accaunted Yar rmpre than 20% of (o revence 373 receivables four ok year erded bach 31,
2022 and hdareh 31, 2021,




@ BRPL

Brahmani River Petlets Limited
Motes La the nanclal staterments far the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN emaynts m § Crpre, paleds arhecwiie \.’-I?I!n_"ﬂ'j

Maote 34 - Capital managamonk

For the purpose af the Company™s capital managemens, capital imcludes issued equity capetal, secorntigs
premivme The promcry ghjosime at 1me Loan Pty s Lapetal manage:-mant & to.

to emsure 1he Company's abilty to continuc ac 2 gaing, concerm
- ta create value for shareholders by faciiitating the megting of long verm and shadt term goals o! the
Cornpany.

The Company manages iLs capital siructure and oakes ad;ustmsents on hght of changes in econamic conditions
and the requ:ramentt of the fmancial covenants

The Campany deteemines Lthe amount of caprital reguired on tke basis f anneal busnecs plan coupled with
lang 1erem and shean berm strategic eapansian plaes. The fending reeds are met through equity, cash gendrated
from oparatons, long term and short term borrowings

The Company nmoniters the capital stroclure on the bass of eet debt to equity rafis and matusay profile of Lhe
owergll debt portfolio of the Comgany. Mew dehy ingludes inlerest bearng barrowings less cash and cash

equivalents and ather bank balances fancluding mor-curenl earmarked balances)

The table below summarices the capstal, net debt and net debit Lo cquily ratic §Geanmg raba] of the Campany

P A= alk A5 ak
artleutars March31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Met cebis fincluding borrgwings, trede payables, net af (2ash and 172.9E 123.35
cash equrvalants, other bank balances and fixed deposits]]
Total eguaty 1,187 .ER 1.190.10
Met gearing ratio {dwes) LA L 0.3

Hote 39 - Categories of Branclal instruments

This zectson gives an overview of the significance ol financial instruments for the Company and provides
adgditignal infgrmation on balance sheet items that egetam financial wmstrpments. The details of sgailicant
accaunung polces, mcluding the eritena for recognition, the basic of measurement znd the basis on which
income and expenses are recogrised in eespect of each class of fingncial 35561, and financoal hability are
dise lpsed in Mate 2.2

&. Financlal assets and liabilitles

The accounting classification of cech category of linandial instrumerts, and thew carrying amounts, are set out
Below.

The management asspssed that Eair walues of casin and cash egquivalents, trade recewables, other finangial
astets, trade payables and other linancial liabikties recorded st amorlised oSt i ¢onsidered to be a
redsdnable approdimation of Gic valye.

The Tallawang method and assumplosn weere used Lo estimate the fair values:

Fair values of 1he Company’s interest-bearing borrgwings are determingd Iy wsing EIR method wsing discount
rarg that refiects the sssued’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The gwn aoa-perférmances
risk as at March 31, 2022 was assessed ta be insignilicant

=l

| CDMENVTRE-E
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Brahrrtari River fallees L myieed
Meles to che fmantisl statements lor the year paded darch 31, X03r
Call ot s o T Lo, weti@sk rhe peBe Sroragy

Mirte &0 - Finanocial misk management shjeivet aad polices {Cankd.]

Credit risk
Lrodik w5k s Pre ngk fhat cauntergaety wall nat et s Bl gatnahs Loder A fir 2 pzeal wnskryraas procustamr er ccatrecl, l=ading ko
abmanoal loss The Cpmpary 5 manly expesed 20 cre i rek ‘rom v operaLig, acinntes lanseanly rgde recmvable)

. Trade recenabies
Cradit ridk hal aivedyy besn midnaged SPrough oredit epprovals, estabbiung credit mits aad corl meaus’y 00 orieg the
cract worthinezs af castan:ers t2owl oF the Cofpasy grantg feect peenss o n the nprmat rzarse af buunews, On acccurd of
adzptian o Ird A% 108, the Company uses Expecled Zhede Laas (ECLE mogal bo assess the emparment ioey or gain. Tre
Camaany Jsrs a @ravis =0 matris bo campole the erpedled et 1255 allowearce Toe trade recewvables The provis am matny
1akes g arpgant avacabis raterrz] and iqter ool credie s factors, Huweyves during the year ma;z- recoivabies are goerre]
e Lober o credil L}

Apeing of trade recevaties:

180 Favys 1B 365 days  Abeae 365 days g | g et
Anat March 31, 2222 LA PR - 183 (a3 Anh.aq
As at March 31, 2921 2471l - 4 B [ | 24521

Liguwidity mivk

The Company's peciple saarcey of hquidiy are cals and (ash equivalents 30d e cash low shay g generated Fromoaperaians.
The Company be'iewas that the warang cazizal s se?icieas [EoRees s curieny pegy ~graeris Ariardingy, 2o gedity rak s
perze.wed The Company choesly manitors (04 lguidizy posst & aed meantams adegquase soorce of lunding

The wnrknﬁi:pﬂ;l positien el 1he_tmnn:nn.' 1 gy il
' Parlitulars March 41, 203  ndarch 33, 2031 |

[Cash and cash ogaiva'ents fenihuding asher Sans balances) 4k 14 5724 |
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Brahrwani Rives Pelleks Limited
fapkes Lo the financial Sstatermrenes far the year ended March 31, 2022
(&0 arnowas o §ORGRE, wiess cRherwg e siared)

The rzhle bz provides Jetals regard sg the contwactual maie-ties of s grificzrt fingaz-al Yink ities s a0 Barch 31, 2032
aad March 31, 2021

Fantlculars Less bhan L year 1 - X yebes > Iyears Total

Barrow nzs

S Marck 31, 2032 5T 3 21212 2672 1 25

- htgrcn 31, L 2126 2312 £ 2.0
Trade payas'os

- RtEreh 31 M w12 - - 1040.12

- Warch 31 10210 99.96 : . G2 OR
O1her F:ancial abilmes

Mrarsh T, 202k 25.08 - 2508
-Wanch 31, 2021 Pl - IR

Mote 41 « [(ode on Soeikal Security, 2020

The Mregident has grven bus assent ta the Cage on Sanigl Sesundy, 2003 |"Code”| v Septenber J020 The (oge has been
publsied in the Garetr o4 Inia. Huwsys:, the date on which the Code wil! come 15g oflest has mol bees rolified. The
Comipa-y will asipss the ymoack orce the sub ech rules are nzrbiod ard wil e dppropregbe oTpach (o f5 tinanc -al
statpmenis .nthe penad inowiles e fhe Cofs bocases o e ctive

Mote 42 - Change 1 Habllétles anising from fnancing activities
Farigubars March 31, 2021 Froceeds Regayment Fair Valye  March 31, 2027
chiangus

Borrgawngs  from baass  (nan- Or.?h 35.05 |25.5E) - 104625

currnnt and curierl}

Partioula &Sarch 31, 2020 Procesds R payment Fairvalue ®Aarch 31, 3411
changes

Bosrpwe.nps  from bBarks  |noe- 1530 100,02 [157 2o} - 92,78
currant @ cusrent]

Mote 43 - Additonal regylatory information ngt disineed olspadhece in the (inantial statements
(11 &5 per Masagoment's anavss. the Comgany does not have any trarsactions £ balences wih compamies siruck o urcer
seCL on 248 of the Comgan 85 Azt 2013 or section SE0 of {omperaes Ars, 1956

[ii] The Con: pany iad nor sraded or wtvedted -2 Crypto Cuereroy af Wirtval Cerrenoy daning the Francial yea-.

[h:! Thers 3ra no caarges g sasstd thon pel 50 50 repstered with the ROC sayend ke taturary penod

[iw] kg sohemes of arrangsmients Fave been apphed 0 3proved by the Corppeteat datngsty inlermes of weciizo 23000 137
of the Canpa-as ALk, 2003

{u| The Company does rat kave any Aobsdiacies and Fesie it in cempharoe wein g number of layery préacnls vader
Ciause [A7) af sechion 2 o8 the Ark razd weth the Companoes (Gestrctinn on number of Layess) guies, 2017




«« BRPL

Bralmar| River PEllers Limlted
Motes to the Mnanclal stabements for the year soded Sarch 31, 2022
SN armsants in X Cedoe, anigss olE wesE SICTed)]

it %2 funds Buve been advanced o [paned or wvestad (either fram borrgwed Toeds or sPaez gremiunt @ @ny o1khy-
sources ar wngd of Funds] by ™o Comaany tnoas i aoy othoen pessonls] or eantylws], incvdicg Fore'gn prbibes
Pinlerrmediaries”| with s ondesstanding wh el e reccrged oowrhing o otherwise, that e nter meciany sazll, drectiy o
rdirecily lend G spvest 7 othes possgis of entifics deelled o any reanrer whatscewer By e an behalf ol ke Compaay
[“0).tirmgte Benpde-as.o57] or provide gy gudrarlee, secur:ty of 10e ke o geha Fof the Ultimate Beooficoarses,

The Ccmpany has rot received any fuad fram eny personls) o eam bliest, e10lbErg Farege enlities] " urdir g Pa-lies” |, with
Lhe uncer st ding, whetl gs recaegad :mwnLrg or gireranse, dnat the Campany shall, dirdaly o indirecidy, lend ar westin
athes gersors ar erblacs  geatled in any manner whatsoeger oy o Gn bekalf of the Funding Pary [“LIbrate
Benrfictar s} or prowide asy ga2ia twes, secuiiy ar the ke on bekald of the Flmate Seeetic-ares,

[wn] The Compzny £20% 03 have any benem progesrsy, wheres aey procged 2g has bees imbated or pend ng dgainst ke
Conmzary Fan Aol gty BErEA GRS ey,

[wiiz] T Company daes nar haye ey 15a04ds an which & rot recasded in the books of cccourls Al Ias Lean sranferes
or Sacpsed 35 ceme darng the year noihe 1an asseaaments wnider the Incan'e-3as 407, 10961 §such as, search or sureey or
arry ol relieva =T provsesa s od ihe e zore-ras, Ack, 19617

fuea! The title derds of all immpegble preperties, (other thoe: mrmovalde popesees whare the Company is the lessee ard
the Iwate agregents are doby exected In Tawadr of she Company] disclased in She fraacal satertencs rncleded in
praperty, paank asd eg. omend and capdlal wor'c-ire progresd ar2 held in the samae of the Company as at the balance saeet
date

Mote 24 - Previous yedr's figures bave been reprogsed [ reciasnl pd wrerover acressary 1o coressand with the corent
year's Clasmfication f disclasure.

For and gn bohall of the Bgard of Direclar
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Chandra Prakash Takted Suwendu Kar
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Daze: day 13, 2044



